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Last year, Aero devoted its main focus to the L-39NG program.
Fifty years after the first flight of its successful predecessor,
the legendary L-39 trainer, the L-39NG passed several miles-
tones both in production, development and in business. At the
beginning of 2018, Aero launched assembly of the first four pro-
totype aircraft, and in October it could officially present the first
brand-new L-39NG aircraft to the public. The aircraft’s maiden
flight took place on December 22 – a perfect closing for the year.

From a commercial point of view, 2018 also brought several
achievements for the L-39NG. In April, Aero was able to
announce the aircraft’s first international customer – the
Republic of Senegal. Senegal would like to use four L-39NGs,
in the light attack version, in its Air Force. During the Farnbo-
rough International Air Show in July, Aero revealed another two
very interested customers. Aero has also significantly progressed
in negotiations with other potential customers who in past
years have already been users of our previous models.

Aside from the L-39NG, Aero has also focused on its other
proprietary aircraft. The upgraded L-159T2 aircraft developed
for the Czech Air Force, in close cooperation with the customer,
made its first flight in August. Collaboration with Israeli
company IAI resulted in a project of the F/A-259 Striker – a figh-
ter attack aircraft, successor to the L-159. The L-39CW marked
an important milestone by obtaining its certification. Aero also
continued to support the L-159s, L-59s and L-39s that are in
service in various air forces and companies. Operators of the
latter met at the Third L-39 Users' Group Conference organized
in October in the Czech Republic.

In its aerostructures business, Aero was mainly engaged
in three major projects – the A220, KC-390 and Black Hawk.
Production of the A220 has increased, and Bombardier
announced further growth in the following years. At the end

of 2018, Embraer signed a joint venture with Boeing for sup-
port and development of the KC-390, which should bring
a breath of fresh air to the program. Unfortunately, despite Ae-
ro’s exceptional performance in 2018 – and an extension of the
contract signed the previous year – Lockheed Martin recently
decided to move production of the Black Hawk back to the U.S.
as part of the “America first” industrial policy.

The Black Hawk decision brings us to the challenges and tasks
for 2019 and beyond. The substantial progress of the L-39NG
program has required and will continue to require in 2019/20
significant financial and non-financial resources. Therefore, our
main task for 2019 is to stabilize the company financially. A key
step is to sign binding contracts for the L-39NG with other
customers and to get in firm orders. At the end of last year,
Aero showed the world that the L-39NG project has transfor-
med from an inchoate idea to a completely new aircraft. In
2019, we will have to perform the tests needed for certification,
so we can start delivering the aircraft according to plan. We
should also move forward in talks with potential customers and
finalize those which are in a mature state of negotiations.

However, as an aerospace company with wide-ranging capabi-
lities, Aero cannot rely on only one new product. The company
will concentrate equally on its other two business pillars and
push its MRO and aerostructure business growth perspectives.
In the first half of 2019, we should finish deliveries of the L-159
to Draken International and hand over the first L-159T2
aircraft to the Czech Air Force. We are also tasked with
supporting our L-159 fleet in Iraq and L-39 legacy fleets in
various countries and further strengthening our close relati-
onships with the many L-39 operators around the world in
order to capture additional business opportunities for repairs,
overhauls as well as for conversions to the L-39CW. We will
also focus on production in the A220, KC-390 and other aero-

2019 will not be easy; our task will be to strengthen the
company so we can remain a reliable and solid partner for our
customers and continue to fulfill our mission of becoming
an outstanding military aircraft producer and to increase our
position on the international market.

Dieter John, President and CEO of the company
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2019 outlook
OUR TASK WILL BE TO STRENGTHEN THE COMPANY SO WE CAN 
REMAIN A RELIABLE AND SOLID PARTNER FOR OUR CUSTOMERS 
AND CONTINUE TO FULFILL OUR MISSION OF BECOMING 
AN OUTSTANDING MILITARY AIRCRAFT PRODUCER AND TO INCREASE
OUR POSITION ON THE INTERNATIONAL MARKET.

structures programs to meet the expectations of our customers
and follow ramp-ups in growing programs, at the same time
identifying new opportunities to cover the exit of the Black
Hawk program, while also supporting our military programs
and expanding our skills.



corporate profile

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (hereinafter also referred to
as Aero) is a public limited liability company incorporated on
December 15, 2011 (as TULAREO a.s., its new name AERO Vo-
dochody AEROSPACE a.s. was entered in the Commercial Re-
gister on September 19, 2012). The company’s registered office
is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště No. 374, postcode
250 70. It was entered in the Commercial Register on December
15, 2011 at the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 17749,
Identification No: 24194204, Tax Identification No: CZ24194204. 

The company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE, a.s. is, according
to the Project of dividing the company AERO Vodochody a.s., the
successor company of AERO Vodochody a.s. thus continuing the
rich history of that company. Until end of 2006, almost 100% of
the shares of AERO Vodochody a.s. were owned by the Czech
Consolidation Agency. On January 4, 2007, the Penta Group
became a sole shareholder of AERO Vodochody a.s. and it laun-
ched the company restructuring project in the same year. In the
years 2007 through 2011, AERO Vodochody a.s. achieved accu-
mulated net profit in the amount of CZK 1,523 mil. 

As of January 1, 2012 the manufacturing part of AERO Vodo-
chody a.s. was separated to form AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE
a.s., the 100% owner of which is also the Penta Group. The re-
gistered capital of Aero is CZK 1,002 mil. and it is fully repaid. 

Aero is the biggest manufacturer of aviation technology in the
Czech Republic. It is engaged in the development, production,
sale and servicing of military and civil aviation technology.

It focuses on the development, production and maintenance
of its own aircraft and on cooperation with leading aerospace
manufacturers in international cooperative projects. As part of
the military program, it has been a longtime partner of the
armed forces of several countries, in particular the Armed For-
ces of the Czech Republic. It has an established quality mana-
gement system certified according to AS 9100/ISO 9001 and
it is the holder of all the relevant company attestations and
certificates as a whole and for partial processes in accordance
with national and international standards. In terms of its own
final production, it holds authorization for the individual activi-
ties, i.e. authorization for the development, manufacture, main-
tenance and maintenance training. As a subcontractor it holds
the partial approvals of the Quality Management System
and special processes from individual customers or under the
NADCAP accreditation.

corporate governance

Penta Group
Since beginning of 2007, Penta group is a sole shareholder
of Aero. Penta is a Central European investment group founded
in 1994, specializing in long-term value investing. Today, the group
actively develops companies and projects, primarily in healthcare,
financial services, retail, manufacturing, media and real estate. 

Penta is one of the largest employers in the region and provi-
des jobs to more than 44,000 people. The group is active
on more than 10 markets throughout Europe and has offices
in Prague, Bratislava and Warsaw. 

board of Directors as on December 31, 2018
Giuseppe Giordo Member

supervisory board as on December 31, 2018
Dominika Kalinová Chairwoman
Jan Borýsek, Jan Kříž Members

management of the company
Organizational structure as on December 31, 2018
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keY figures 2018 (eur)
NET PROFIT 288 million
CUMULATIVE REVENUE 7.5 billion
TOTAL ASSETS 10.4 billion

chief business
officer

Massimo Ghione

chief inDustrial
officer
Jan Čáp

ProGrams Defence
& civil

Jan Štechr

enGineerinG
Jan Štechr

Procurment &
suPPly chain

Monika Kowalczyková

institutional
relations

Alice Undusová

fliGht oPerations 
& airPort
Petr Doubek

human resources
Tomáš Vlček

ProGram l-39nG
Marco Venanzetti

finance
Michal Flídr

qms & quality
control

David Čapek

security
Václav Volenec

secretary General
Guido Mule’

PresiDent  & ceo
Guiseppe Giordio

strateGy, 
Pr & chief of staff

Damiano Cotula

chief risk officer &
quality system manaGement

Antonio DiMicco



management as on december 31, 2018

Giuseppe Giordo Chief Executive Officer & President
Guido Mule‘ Secretary General
Tomáš Vlček Director of Human Resources
Damiano Cotula Strategy, PR & Chief of Staff
Marco Venanzetti EVP L-39NG Program
Antonio DiMicco Chief Risk Officer
Michal Flídr Chief Finance Officer, VP Finance
Petr Doubek Flight Operations & Airport
Alice Undusová Institutional Relations

David Čapek
Quality Assessment 
& Quality Management System

Václav Volenec Security Director
Massimo Ghione Chief Business Officer
Jan Čáp Chief Industrial Officer
Jan Štechr Programs Defence & Civil
Jan Štechr Engineering 
Monika Kowalczyková Procurement & Supply Chain

cHanges in tHe companY management

in august 2018, there has been a change on position of Chief
Security Officer of Aero. Radek Klapuš was succeeded by Vác-
lav Volenec.

in December 2018, there has been a change on position of head
of Sales. Jakub Hoda became a new Head of Sales suceeding
Jakub Fojtík.

Aero has no organizational unit abroad.

compliance management sYstem

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. operates in highly regulated
and controlled sectors – in the aerospace and defence industry.
This practically means that Aero and its employees must
comply with applicable Czech, international and foreign control
laws and regulations which govern international business tran-
sactions of our company as well as data sharing and transfers
of technology and technical information.

The key requirement is that all employees always know the
nature and application of all products and data as well as de-
tails of all transactions being processed. Products, data and
services  which require import or export authorizations are
generally considered as controlled. This refers primarily to
defence products or dual use goods, however, guns and muni-
tions or other kinds of strategic goods are licensable as well. 

The essential rule is that employees  do not import, export
or transfer (including providing access to) company's export
controlled products, technical data and technology (including
software and source code) or provide or receive any export
controlled technical assistance and services unless appropriate
local and foreign authorizations are obtained.  

The other rule is that no products, data, software or services
are transferred, provided or re-sold to any sanctioned or denied
person or embargoed destination designated by the European
Union, the United Nations and or any other applicable authority. 

risk management

The risk management is a systematic complex of activities leading
to timely identification and quantification of risks and to the deci-
sion about further progress of work with the risk during the entire
time of risk duration. Any uncertain event, which could negatively
or positively affect the achievement of the goal, is clasified as risk.

As a result of the Risk management project, the Risk Manage-
ment Organization has been established. The new organization
is reporting directly to the CEO of the company and is suppor-
ted in its operation by the Risk management executive
committee.

Risk management structure as on December 31, 2018:
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risk management
executive committee

executive team
(fires line)

risk management organization

chief risk
officer

erm leader Prm leader

risk owners risk owners

mandatory

ceo

cro

cfo

sG

ceo

optional

installation of tHe l-39ng canopY



marrY-up

code of etHics

Aero is the largest aviation manufacturer in the Czech Repu-
blic and one of the oldest aircraft manufacturers in the world,
therefore, it must protect this important legacy and heritage by
ensuring a reputation of uniqueness, integrity and credibility.
Our heritage for future generations can be preserved only by
respecting the highest standards of conduct in dealing with pe-
ople, organizations and governments.

Aero’s Code of Ethics covers a wide range of trade practices
and procedures, sets out the basic principles of business inte-
grity in the management of Aero and helps promote corporate
culture, which aims to cultivate our brand every day.

anti-corruption code

The Anti-corruption Code aims to strengthen preventative
structures and to highlight the company policy of strictly rejec-
ting any unlawful business practices, especially corruption. 

environment

In 2018, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE discharged 7.971 tons
of emissions into the atmosphere (of that 7.128 tons of volatile
organic compounds, 0.456 tons of nitrogen oxides, 0.313 tons of
solid particles and 0.074 tons of other substances). The paint
shop and related operations were the largest source of emissi-
ons. Measurements of all sources showed that emission limits
were met in 2018. No air pollution fee was imposed for 2018. In
2018, Aero produced 1,870 tons of waste, including 687 tons of
hazardous waste.

Aero drew 121.13 thousand m3 of groundwater in 2018 (of that
110.6 thousand m3 for industrial technology). The fees for
groundwater abstraction amounted to CZK 352.9 thousand.
Fees charged for wastewater discharge amounted to CZK 65.6
thousand, of which fees for the discharged pollution amounted
to CZK 65.6 thousand.

aero‘s mission/strategY

our mission
To consolidate Aero as a global player in the aeronautics & de-
fence market internationally recognized as an original aircraft
manufacturer competing also in the aerostructure business and
generating value for all our stakeholders: customers, partners,
shareholders, employees, and community. 

our strategy
The long-term corporate strategy defines in detail the steps leading
to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. once again becoming
a major global manufacturer of own aircraft (AOM – aircraft origi-
nal manufacturer). The management of the company has defined
six main strategic objectives.

• To regain the position as the leading manufacturer of light
combat and training aircraft.

• To promote growth through the provision of additional
servicing and redefinition of the customer support system
and the business model.

• To optimize the portfolio of contractual relations in the aero-
structures and to develop in particular the design-to-build
programs and programs bringing specific technology.

• To find opportunities for further business growth through
potential new segments, new industrial partnerships.

• To strive for sustainable excellence of production both in terms
of meeting customer requirements and in terms of quality.

• To continue to develop the organization in terms of compe-
tence, international corporate culture and the ability to attract
and retain the best human resources. 

strategic steps done in 2018
• Launch of the final assembly line for the L-39NG first items.
• Completion of production of the first L-39NG prototype.
• Roll-out and first flight of the L-39NG aircraft.
• Getting the first customers for the L-39NG.
• Finishing the certification of the L-39CW aircraft.
• Presenting the F/A-259 Striker to the world public.
• Strengthening the marketing and sales activities and conduc-

ting the individual commercial campaigns.
• Concluding strategic partnerships to support company growth

(collaboration with Israeli company IAI on L-39NG and F/A-259
Striker projects).

• Launch revision of civilian and military programs to increase
segment profitability.
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L-39NG Roll-out



keY events of 2018

January
The company's 
management and 
administrative units
moved to a newly 
renovated building 
at the entrance 
to the Aero facility.

february
Operation on the 
L-39NG pre-series
production line was
launched. On the
newly completed line,
the assembly 
of airframes for the
first four new aircraft
was started.

march
The L-39CW received
its type certificate.
Aero can therefore
perform re-engining
and other improve-
ments of existing L-39 
aircraft, and so extend
their service life.

april
Aero won the first 
customer for the 
new aircraft L-39NG. 
A contract for delivery
of four new aircraft
was signed with the
Republic of Senegal.

The companies
AERO Vodochody 
AEROSPACE a.s. 
and Israel Aerospace
Industries Ltd. (IAI)
signed an agreement
on technical and trade
cooperation on the 
L-159 aircraft.

may
The Iraqi air force 
accepted a two seater
L-159T1.

June
Aero and IAI 
announced a joint 
interest in partici-
pating in the 
program OA-X 
of the United States
Air Force.

July
Aero and IAI introdu-
ced the concept 
of the F/A-259 Striker
aircraft, which builds
on the L-159 aircraft,
but is equipped 
with the latest 
technologies.

At the Farnborough
fair, Aero announced
that it had signed 
a Letter of Intent 
with two serious 
potential customers
for the L-39NG.

august
The first of the 
L-159T2 aircraft 
for the Army 
of the Czech Republic
successfully 
completed its 
first flight.

october
Aero hosted the 
third L-39 Users' 
Group Conference 
with the participation
of 18 countries.

L-39NG rollout 
attended by top 
political leaders, 
military commanders,
customers and 
national and inter-
national media.

December
Factory test pilots
David Jahoda 
and Vladimír Továrek
successfully 
completed the 
first flight with 
the new L-39NG.
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Business activities of Aero stand on three main pillars:

L-39NG
Design, development and production of brand new military jet
aircraft able to serve as a trainer and/or light combat aircraft.

support of proprietary aircraft
Support of operators of aircraft developed and produced by
Aero – L-39, L-59 and L-159. MRO services, upgrades.

aerostructures
Participation on international aerospace programs, both as
a supplier and as a partner in development.

l-39ng program

L-39NG is a project concerning a new, highly efficient trainer
that will be able to serve in the training syllabus as a basic,
advanced and LIFT trainer thanks to advanced avionics. The
L-39NG is based on the aerodynamic concept of the current
L-39, but is manufactured using new technologies and contains
modern systems.

In 2018, there were several major milestones in the project
of the new L-39NG aircraft. At the beginning of the year, Aero
launched the assembly line for the first four pieces, the final
assembly of the first L-39NG began in the summer. On Friday,
October 12, the new aircraft thus could be introduced to the
public for the first time during a roll-out ceremony. Even
before the end of the year, December 22, factory test pilots
David Jahoda and Vladimír Továrek took off with the L-39NG
for the first time. Starting June 2019, this aircraft will be used
for flight testing and other development tests. The second
aircraft is designed for static tests, the third for fatigue tests.
The fourth aircraft produced will be involved in flight tests.
L-39NG certification is planned for the end of 2019.

In addition, in 2018, Aero managed to conclude agreements
with three potential customers for the new aircraft. First,
in April, it signed an agreement with Senegal Air Forces
interested in four aircraft in a light combat configuration. In
July, Aero presented two other serious potential customers for
the L-39NG. Aero further continued in the intensive promotion
of the new aircraft and in negotiations with potential customers
on almost every continent.

support of proprietarY aircraft

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is historically the largest
producer of jet trainers in the world. In total, it has produced
around 11,000 aircraft, of which hundreds are still flying on all
continents. Airplanes from Aero boast excellent maneuverabi-
lity and the ability to withstand all weather conditions. 

Aero focuses on the development, production and support of
its final products - L-39, L-59, and L-159 aircraft - and on the
provision of services in the areas of aircraft repair, moderniza-
tion, modification and testing. 

In the case of the L-159 aircraft, Aero has focused on suppor-
ting the existing customers, i.e. the armies of the Czech Repu-
blic and Iraq, and the company Draken International. At a fair
in Farnborough in July 2018, Aero and its new strategic partner,
IAI, presented the F/A-259 Striker, a multi-purpose combat
aircraft and successor of to the L-159.

Aero continues to provide support for the users of L-39s and
L-59s. For the L-39/ L-59 operators, Aero offers an extensive
portfolio of services ranging from the extension of service life
and overhauls to upgrades of all the aircraft systems.

re-engining of existing l-39

Besides the development of new aircraft, Aero is also working
on a project of re-engining the existing L-39s. In 2015, Aero
successfully installed a Williams FJ-44M engine and new
avionics in the existing L-39CA fuselage airframe. The proto-
type, called L-39CW, successfully completed its first flight
in September 2015.

In February 2018 the L-39CW aircraft received the type certificate.
Aero has registered several civilian and military clients interested
in this way of extending the life of existing L-39s, the order of six
aircraft remotorizations is part of a broader agreement with the
US company RSW Aviation, announced in July of 2018.  

ligHt combat and training sYstem l-159

The light combat and training aircraft L-159 combines many
years of Aero’s experience from the development of military
jets with the latest advances in avionics, engines and aircraft
systems. The single-seat L-159 is designed as a light combat
aircraft optimized for a variety of air-to-ground and air-to-air
tasks and reconnaissance missions. The aircraft is equipped
with multi-purpose radar for all weather conditions and day
and night operation, it can also carry a wide range of standard
NATO weaponry, including air-to-air and air-to-ground missi-
les and laser guided bombs.

The two-seat L-159 is based on the structure of the single-seat
version of the L-159 and is primarily designed for advanced and
operations training. The configuration of the L-159 can be
adapted to the specific requirements of the customer.
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l-39ng program
L-39NG IS A PROJECT CONCERNING A NEW, 
HIGHLY EFFICIENT TRAINER THAT WILL BE ABLE 
TO SERVE IN THE TRAINING SYLLABUS AS A BASIC, 
ADVANCED AND LIFT TRAINER THANKS 
TO ADVANCED AVIONICS.

David Jahoda and Vladimír Továrek at the L-39NG cockpit

Aero upgraded two Algerian L-39s in 2018.



support of l-159 aircraft serving 
in tHe czecH armY

• L-159 ALCA single-seat light combat aircraft were put into
ACR service in 2000; the two-seat training version L-159T
arrived in 2007.

• The L-159s perform a broad range of tasks from advanced
and operations training through close air support up to
reconnaissance missions and air defence. They regularly
participate in international NATO flying training events (such
as the Tactical Leadership program, NATO Air Meet, Clean
Hunter, and Flying Rhino).

• Aero supports the L-159s as a part of a Follow On Support
and Services contract (FOSS), which comprises the supply of
spare parts and consumables, repairs, technical consulting,
and improvements to the maintenance system. In addition,
in 2017, Aero was doing mandatory work after reaching 2000
flight hours (PP2000) on L-159T1 military aircraft under
a contract signed at the end of 2015.

• In addition, in 2018 Aero conducted the prescribed work after
reaching 2,000 flight hours (PP2000) on the military aircraft
L-159T1 under a contract signed at the end of 2015.

• Furthermore, work began on rebuilding three single-seat
L-159s into modernized two-seat versions of the L-159T2
developed by Aero in collaboration with the Czech Air Force.
The new aircraft is equipped with a Grifo radar, two large-
scale multifunctional displays in both cockpits, and in parti-
cular, the new improved VS-20 ejection seats, which allow
different modes of ejecting. Aero will deliver all three
L-159T2 to the Czech Army in the first half of 2019.

• Aero also continues in its program of upgrading the L-159's
functions – an integral fuel tank, increasing the fuel storage
capacity of the L-159 and so considerably extending its range
and persistence.

l-159 abroad

• In April 2014, the company signed a contract for the supply
of ten single-seat L-159As and two two-seat L-159T1s to the
Iraqi Air Force. The supply includes the aircraft repair and
supply of logistic equipment. Aero delivered the first L-159s
to the Iraqi Air Force in December 2015 and the last one
in December 2016. The last three aircraft, two single and
one two-seater, the first L-159 made directly for a foreign
customer, were delivered by Aero to the customer at the end
of December 2016. L-159 aircraft were immediately involved
in military operations in Iraq.

• In September 2018, Aero signed a contract with the Iraqi
Ministry of Defence for the short-term support of L-159
aircraft. The treaty covers the needs of the Iraqi Air Force
over a two-year horizon. Aero is now negotiating with Iraq
about the details of the long-term support contract.

• Another contract for the supply of up to 21 L-159s to the
American company Draken International was signed in
July 2014. As in the previous case, repairs of the aircraft
and delivery of logistic equipment are part of the supply.
During 2018, deliveries of aircraft to Draken International
successfully continued; the last L-159s would arrive to
Florida in 2019.

• In 2017, Aero announced that it was prepared, in the case of
demand for the aircraft, to re-start the production of L-159.
It is also working on improvements and modernization of the
aircraft. During the year, Aero negotiated with potential part-
ners who would participate in the new project, in early 2018,
it entered into a partnership with Israel Aerospace Industries
Ltd. At Farnborough Air Show, they presented the concept
of F/A-259 Striker, which is based on the L-159, but is equip-
ped by a wet wing and state-of-the-art avionics and aircraft
system technologies.
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new concept
AT FARNBOROUGH AIR SHOW, THEY PRESENTED THE 
CONCEPT OF F/A-259 STRIKER, WHICH IS BASED ON THE L-159, 
BUT IS EQUIPPED BY A WET WING AND STATE-OF-THE-ART 
AVIONICS AND AIRCRAFT SYSTEM TECHNOLOGIES.

L-159 in service of the Czech Air Force. L-159 in Iraqi colours.



support for l-39 and l-59

Aero also provides support for L-39s and L-59s operated by
both military and civilian users. Aero provides its customers
with services from supplies of spare parts, servicing, pres-
cribed inspections and repairs, up to regular overhauls, often
related to service-life extension and installation of a device
measuring the aircraft load in operation. Aero service teams
are prepared to work on customers’ sites, they have operated
for a long time in Algeria, Bulgaria, Hungary, Nigeria, Slovakia,
Tunisia and other countries. In 2018, Aero upgraded two
Algerian L-39s, signed an L-39 repair contract for six aircraft
with one of the Central Asian republics, and started overhauls
of three Nigerian aircraft.

In September 2018, Aero organized the third L-39 Users' Group
Conference. It was attended by representatives of 18 countries.
The aim of the conference is to share experience with the
operation of L-39s, both among the individual users and with
the aircraft manufacturer. The success of the conference is pro-
ven by the growing number of participants.

aerostructures

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a 1st and 2nd tier supplier
to leading world aerospace manufacturers. Aero focuses
primarily on the manufacture and assembly of complex aircraft
structures with a high degree of product finalization, including
systems integration and testing, supply management, and
final inspection. Aero is involved in all stages of the lifecycle
of commercial and military projects, combining the company’s
extensive experience in the aviation industry acquired during
more than ninety years of its existence with implementation
of the latest technologies, testing methods, and lean production
principles. 

In 2018, three programs were crucial for Aero in the Aero-
structures area: leading edges for civilian A220 (formerly CSe-
ries) airliners, supplies for a KC-390 military multi-purpose
aircraft, and UH-60M/S-70i Black Hawk helicopter cockpits.
In the spring of 2018, Aero delivered the very last S-76
helicopter, whose production Sikorsky decided to stop after
forty years. S-76 helicopters have been produced in Vodochody
since 2000, and a remarkable 394 units have left Aero for
the USA. 

Under the new strategy, Aero emphasizes the development and
acquisition of a smaller number of large projects. That means
mainly risk-share programs, or programs of smaller size
but with strategic benefit or a high added value for the
company. Therefore, in 2018, the closure of programs that Aero
decided to stop on the basis of an in-depth analysis carried out
in 2016 continued. 

embraer kc-390

Program Description
• A new multi-purpose mid-size transport military aircraft

designed for carrying cargo and passengers.
• It is a direct competitor of the C-130 Hercules manufactured

by Lockheed Martin.
• The project was initiated by the Brazilian Air Force. 28 aircraft

have been ordered by the Brazilian Air Force with a commit-
ment to partially finance their development.

• The aircraft rolled out in October 2014, with its first flight
on February 3, 2015; the production of the first serial pieces
began in 2017.

• In 2016, the KC-390 prototype stopped at Aero as part of its
first ever trip outside South America.

• In October 2018, the first serial aircraft flew for the first time
(the third aircraft produced in total). At the end of October,
the KC-390 received civilian certification from the Brazilian
authorities. In 2019, Embraer plans to deliver the first two
aircraft to the Brazilian Air Force and to obtain also the mili-
tary certification.

• In addition, in July 2018, Embraer and Boeing announced
their intention to create a joint venture to support and deve-
lop the KC-390 project. The exact form of cooperation was
agreed at the end of 2018, the approval of the intention
by the Brazilian government and the responsible authorities
is expected by the beginning of 2019.

• Aero is a strategic risk-sharing partner of Embraer.

aero’s Product and role
• Aero is fully responsible for the development, industrializa-

tion, certification support and production of the fixed leading
edge of the wing.

• Aero is fully responsible for industrialization and production
of all doors, the cargo ramp and section II of the rear fuselage.

airbus a220

Program Description
• The Airbus A220 is a single-aisle transport aircraft for short

and medium-haul commercial traffic. Two versions of the
aircraft (A220-100 and A220-300) can carry between 100 and
150 passengers.

• This aircraft was developed and launched by the Canadian
company Bombardier under the name CSeries. In July 2018
(after Airbus entered the project), the aircraft was renamed
Airbus A220.

• The contract for the development and production of the
leading edge for the CSeries aircraft was signed by Aero
in 2009 with the Belgian company Sonaca. During 2016,
a contract was signed with the aircraft manufacturer, Bom-
bardier company, and Aero thus started to deliver directly
to the Bombardier Belfast.

• In October 2017, Airbus joined the project, controlling
a 50.01% stake, with 31% holding Bombardier and 19%
owned by the Canadian company Investissement Québec. 

• The first prototype of the smaller version took place in
September 2013, the prototype of the larger type took off
for the first time in February 2015. In 2016, both versions
of the aircraft entered service at their first customers.

• At the end of 2018, Bombardier had 537 fixed orders and
delivered a total of 57 aircraft.

aero’s Product and role
• Fully assembled and equipped fixed leading edge (FLE) of the

wing ready for being mounted to the aircraft.
• Aero is fully responsible for design, industrialization, certifi-

cation and production. 
• In 2018, Aero delivered 33 shipsets of leading edges to the

customer, 18 for A220-300 and 15 for -100, expecting further
growth in the future.
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sikorskY uH-60m and s-70i black Hawk

Program Description
• Helicopters of the Sikorsky S-70/ UH-60 series are currently

the most common type of military transport helicopter.
• The UH-60M is the latest version used by the U.S. armed for-

ces and by a number of other countries through the US pro-
gram Foreign Military Sales; the S-70i is the export version.

• The contract between Aero and Sikorsky for the supply
of UH-60M cockpits was concluded in 2010;

• Aero is one of two suppliers of the cockpits. The first
cockpit was delivered in June 2011. In 2016 Aero delivered
41 cockpits.

• Aero also supplies cockpits to the subsidiary company
Sikorsky PZL Mielec in Poland and supplies cockpits for
the international version of the Black Hawk, the S-70i.

aero’s Product and role
• Aero supplies fully equipped cockpits for the UH-60M and

S-70i helicopters.
• Aero manufactures parts and assembles the cockpits,

including installation of electrical harnesses and flight
safety parts.

• At the end of 2018, Sikorsky decided to stop working
with Aero and move the production of helicopters to the
United States, in line with US administration requirements
to return production of strategic military programs home.
The production of Black Hawk helicopters in Aero will
be thus stopped in the first half of 2019.

additional programs

During 2016, it was decided to terminate some aerostructures
programs that do not fit in the new corporate strategy. There-
fore, in 2017, Aero negotiated with its customers the gradual
closure of these projects, most of them were closed during
2018. In other programs, the terms were renegotiated to be
more favorable for Aero. In subsequent years, Aero will conti-
nue in the following programs:

conversion of civil aircraft to transportation
• Aero is a partner to the Singapore company ST Aerospace in

the development and production of shell structures for the
passenger-to-freight conversion (P2F) for Airbus A321s.

• In 2018, preparations were made for the transition from de-
velopment to production. Aero will deliver the first prototypes
in the first half of 2019.

landing gear production
• Aero is the original manufacturer of landing gear for small

aircraft and the supplier of components for landing gear
of large transport aircraft.

• Aero designs and manufactures landing gear for the Czech
company Aircraft Industries - for their 19-seat twin-engine
turbo-prop transport aircraft, L-410 Turbolet.

• Since 2010, Aero has delivered landing-gear sub-assemblies
to Safran Landing Systems for their Airbus A320s and A321s,
single-aisle medium-range transport aircraft, currently the
best-selling aircraft in the world. In 2014, the contract was
extended to cover the A320/A321 NEO aircraft.

• Aero produces landing gear for all of its own training and
combat aircraft.

composite production
• In 2015, Aero has signed a contract with German company

MT Aerospace to supply three packages of parts for Airbus
A400M and A350.

• Aero uses the composite workshop, opened in 2012, also in
the production of parts for its own aircraft.

alenia c-27J spartan
• The Alenia C-27J is a military tactical transport aircraft with

a maximum payload of 11.5 tons. The primary users of the
aircraft are air forces of the United States, Italy, Greece and
Australia as well as countries of Central and Eastern Europe,
Latin America and Africa. Since 2007, Aero has been the sole
supplier of the center wing box, which is a critical structural
and system unit of the whole aircraft. The center wing box
assembly includes integral tanks, pylons for engine installa-
tion and mechanical systems of the wing, fuel and hydraulic
lines, and electrical harnesses. All systems are tested by Aero.
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conversion of civil aircraft 
to transportation
IN 2018, PREPARATIONS WERE MADE FOR THE TRANSITION 
FROM DEVELOPMENT TO PRODUCTION. AERO WILL DELIVER 
THE FIRST PROTOTYPES IN THE FIRST HALF OF 2019.

Sikorsky UH-60 S-70I Black Hawk

Alenia C-27J Spartan
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minutes spent L-39NG in the sky during 

its first flight on December 22, 2018.



For the financial year of 2018, the company AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s. generated operating profit before depreciation
at the amount of CZK 222.9 million. The result was heavily
influenced by investment in the L-39NG project, which will
bring economic return in the future. Despite a new five-year
contract, the UH-60 Black Hawk's cockpit delivery program
ends based on the customer's decision to move production
back to its own production capacity. Serial production for
KC-390 continues. The result was also influenced by higher
material consumption and work on A220. As regards military
programs, Aero has been successful in MRO (maintenance
and repair of existing aircraft), but the revenues from these
services have been delayed. 

However, the strategic project of the year was the development
and continuation of production of the first four prototypes of the
L-39NG, which will become the main platform of own products
in the coming years. Positive reaction from potential customers
in the form of orders secured by business contracts confirms
that the direction our company has taken is right.

The balance sheet total as of December 31, 2018 amounted
to CZK 5,910.9 million, equity covered 15.6% of assets
and amounted to CZK 920.7 million.

sales

In 2018, the company generated revenues of CZK 2,627.5
million. The most significant source of sales was the sale of its
own products and services, for which the company received
CZK 2,131.6 million, and sales of goods amounting to CZK 412.7
million. The year-on-year decline of 33% was associated mainly
with the closure of a number of smaller programs based on the
company's management strategic decision. The company's
long-term strategy focuses mainly on the development and sale
of the new L-39NG training aircraft, and the continuation of
strategic cooperation programs, such as KC-390, A220 and ST
Aerospace. The company received CZK 83.2 million for the sale
of assets and materials. 

The company received CZK 2,364.8 million for supplies to
foreign customers, which represents 90% of total sales.

The co-operation programs accounted for 65% of revenues
in 2017, amounting to CZK 1,707.9 million, which mainly inclu-
ded the programs UH-60, A220, KC-390, Latecoere, and Safran.
Military programs accounted for 34% of sales, amounting
to CZK 893.4 million. The rest of the company reported sales
of CZK 26.2 million.

profit

For the year 2018, the company made loss before tax at
CZK 560.1 million. The loss of CZK 560.1 million will be used
to deduct taxes for the next 5 years.

The economic result before tax was made up of a loss in the
amount of CZK 436.2 million and a loss from financial activities
in the amount of CZK 123.9 million. 

Operating profit decreased by CZK 539.2 million year on year.
In year-on-year comparison, its amount was negatively
affected by the termination of aerostructures programs and
partly by the termination of supplies in the military segment.

The company's financing resulted in a loss of CZK 123.9
million. The company spent CZK 94 million on cost interests
and CZK 58.6 million on fees associated with financing.
Interest receivable was CZK 1.7 million, especially from
the subsidiary.

asset structure

As of 31 December 2018, the company owned assets in
the amount of CZK 5,910.9 million. Fixed assets were reported
at CZK 2,445.2 million. Assets in progress include mainly
the assets related to the development of parts of the KC-390
aircraft, and to the L-39NG project.  

In current assets, the Company was committed to CZK 2,971.1
million. Inventories accounted for 81% of their value. In year-
on-year terms, they increased by CZK 425.8 million, mainly due
to L-39NG tests and the termination of part of the aerostructu-
res programs. Advance payments of CZK 109.8 million were
obtained from customers to finance part of the inventory. 

Accrued items accounted for 8% of total assets. In particular,
these included accrued income of CZK 136 million related
to military programs. 

As of 31 December 2018, the company financed 28% of its
assets from own resources. Liabilities of CZK 4,922.0 million
consisted of reserves of CZK 171.8 million, bank loans and
loans from leasing companies of CZK 1,734.7 million, and paya-
bles to related parties of 1,421.3 million CZK, liabilities to the
state and to employees in the amount of CZK 96.1 million
and liabilities to business partners in the amount of
CZK 1,325.4 million. 

Compared to the previous year, foreign funds increased by CZK
1,113.8 million, the reason for the increase was the intensifi-
cation of the L-39NG project and the impact of the termination
of part of the aerostructures programs. 

Debt to banks rose year-on-year by CZK 433.5 million. Loan
exposures have been replaced by related party support to
optimize the cost of financing of development projects. 

In passive accruals, the company reported items amounting to
CZK 68.2 million.
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impact of investment
FOR THE YEAR 2018, THE FINANCIAL RESULT WAS HEAVILY 
INFLUENCED BY INVESTMENT IN THE L-39NG STRATEGIC PROJECT, 
WHICH WILL BRING ECONOMIC RETURN IN THE FUTURE.



investments, development programs, 
researcH and development

Investment and development activities were carried out in
accordance with the company's new strategy, which was
published in 2016, when the company began focusing on the
development and production of its own military aircraft and
the continuation of key aerostructures programs.

In 2018, the Company invested heavily in the development and
production of the new L-39NG jet trainer. In connection with
this program, considerable resources have been spent both
on development work and on the purchase of the necessary
products, measuring instruments, software and manufacturing
facilities.

Human resources

In 2018, the company's human resources management focu-
sed primarily on activities to meet its capacity requirements,
with the primary goal of achieving the first flight of the L-39NG
prototype aircraft. For example, in the area of employee deve-
lopment, the company has launched a Master Academy training
program and continued to develop middle management. As
part of its long-term cooperation with educational institutions,
in addition to annual residency and internships, the company
has implemented some new forms of cooperation, such as the
Aerobooster student competition. 

The average number of registered employees at Aero in 2018
was 1,732 (1,897 including agency employees) and the total
number of employees as of December 31, 2018 reached 1,703
(1,828 including agency employees). Over 190 new permanent
employees were hired in that period for qualified labor and
technical positions designated for the preparation and imple-
mentation of both existing and new production programs. Aero
spent in total CZK 7 million on training its employees. Deve-
lopment costs per one employee in 2018 reached CZK 4,021. 

In 2019, the company plans to optimize its human resources
capacities and concentrate its activities on supporting the start-
up and delivery of L-39NG aircraft and deliveries to existing
customers.
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Human resources
IN 2019, THE COMPANY PLANS TO OPTIMIZE ITS HUMAN RESOURCES CAPACITIES 
AND CONCENTRATE ITS ACTIVITIES ON SUPPORTING THE STARTUP AND DELIVERY 
OF L-39NG AIRCRAFT AND DELIVERIES TO EXISTING CUSTOMERS.



1919
Aero was established on February 25, 1919. 

The company has 100 years of tradition of producing aircraft. 
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tHe beginnings

Aero was established on Tuesday, February 25, 1919, with its
registered office in the Old Town of Prague and production
facilities in Prague-Bubeneč. Aero celebrated its 100th anni-
versary in 2019, ranking it among the world’s oldest manufac-
turers of aviation technology. From the very beginning, Aero
focused on development and production of aircraft, aircraft
parts and aircraft repairs. As early as 1919, Aero launched its
first in-house produced aircraft - the Aero A-1. The Czechoslo-
vak Ministry of Defence ordered mass production of the airc-
raft designed for military pilot training, so typical for Aero. 

expansion

More powerful trainer types followed, and after production had
been moved to new facilities in the Prague district of Vysočany
(1923), the foundation was laid for a new family of reconnais-
sance, bomber and training biplanes of the Aero A-11 and A-12
types. Czechoslovak military pilots soon became famous for
breaking records and winning races in Aero aircraft. Aero, at
that time a private enterprise owned by Dr. Vladimír Kabeš,
became the main contractor for the Ministry of Defence and the
Ministry of Public Works (civil aviation). The first foreign custo-
mers soon followed, starting with Finland. Between the two
world wars, Aero achieved a number of Czechoslovak firsts:
it built a prototype of the first indigenous fighter airplane, desig-
ned the first dedicated cabin transport aircraft, the first twin-en-
gine aircraft, the first seaplane with indigenously designed floats,
introduced a braced high-wing monoplane and also pioneered
a practical design of a wooden cantilever wing structure.

war production

The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilized and
later developed during the German occupation, when Aero
produced stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with full
jigging for reconnaissance and training missions (Focke-Wulf Fw
189 and Siebel Si 204). Immediately after the war ended, the na-
tionalized Aero continued in the production and repairs of airc-
raft. Modified German aircraft types were manufactured for the
Czechoslovak Air Force as well as civil aviation. Shortly after
the war, a new groundbreaking indigenous type was introduced
– the high-performance, twin-engine, all-metal, four-seat Aero 45.

tHe jet era

In 1953, new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft produc-
tion were built in Vodochody and they were put into operation in
the same year. The production, in which several Czechoslovak
aerospace plants were involved, focused on a large-scale series
license production of the Soviet MiG-15 aircraft and its deriva-
tives. The supersonic MiG-19 and MiG-21 aircraft were manu-
factured by Aero throughout the 1960s and 1970s, paving the
way in production capabilities to indigenous jet trainer pro-
grams - the L-29 Delfin and the L-39 Albatros.

indigenous jet trainers

In the second half of the 1950s, the need for jet trainers grew.
Concentrated efforts in developing an optimized airframe and
indigenous jet engine resulted in the maiden flight of the L-29
in 1959. The definitive step on Aero’s path to mass production
of jet trainers was made in the summer of 1961 near Moscow:
the L-29 Delfin won the comparative testing of three different
prototypes and was declared the most suitable trainer in all of
the Eastern Bloc countries. Production and deliveries conti-
nued smoothly for the following ten years, during which time
the second generation of more powerful and much more effi-
cient L-39s was developed. Production of the L-39 occupied Ae-
ro’s workshops and assembly halls during the 1970s and 1980s.
The L-39 Albatros family expanded considerably in the course
of time, forming a perfect basis for further development. The
advent of the 1990s saw the incorporation of western avionics
and standards as well as the use of more powerful American
engines and global equipment, and with it the start of a new
chapter in the life of the company. The L-159 Combat & Tra-
ining System included the L-159 advanced training and light
combat aircraft, integrated logistic support, mission planning
and debriefing and a ground-based training system.

modern HistorY

In the new millennium, Aero set off in a new direction and en-
tered into its first cooperation program – the entire S-76 heli-
copter ready for installation of dynamic parts for the American
company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation. In 2007, the Penta pri-
vate equity group became the sole shareholder of Aero and
started the restructuring process in the company. The doors to
the global market opened for Aero and it began acquiring fur-
ther co-operation programs, including the first risk-sharing
programs. The company has thus become a top-class partner
of world leading aerospace manufacturers. 

The stabilization of the company allowed it to return to the tra-
dition of development and production of jet trainers – in 2014,
Aero announced the launch of the L-39NG project, a new gene-
ration of the legendary aircraft. In addition, Aero used remoto-
rization to revive the legendary L-39. In 2014, after long years of
negotiations, Aero signed the first contracts with international
customers for the L-159 - a private US company Draken Inter-
national and the Iraqi army. In December 2018, Aero achieved an
important milestone when the L-39NG successfully completed
its first flight. It happened 50 years after the first flight of the
L-39 and on the eve of the company's 100th anniversary.
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1921

Aero 45

L-29 Delfin



1919
Aero – továrna létadel
(Aero – aircraft 
factory) founded 
in Prague a-1, 
first military aircraft 
designed and built 
by Aero.
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1921
A-10, first 
civilian airliner

1923
a-11, family of mili-
tary biplanes (bomber
and reconnaissance
aircraft).

1925
De havilland Dh-50,
passenger aircraft
built under 
British license

1929
a-34 “blackbird”,
first in the line 
of light sports and
training biplanes

1932
a-100, family 
of military biplanes
(bomber and 
reconnaissance 
aircraft)

1939
c4/c-104 (Bucker 
Bu-131 Jungmann)
training and 
aerobatic biplane

1943
c-3 (Siebel Si-204D),
twin-engine military
aircraft

1937
mb-200, all-metal
bomber aircraft 
manufactured under
French license 
(Marcel Bloch)

1938
a-304, twin-engine
low-wing military
aircraft

a-300, twin-engine
low-wing bomber
aircraft

1947
ae-45, twin-engine
civil aircraft

1953
Aero moved from 
Prague to 
a new plant 
in Vodochody

1958
Maiden flight of the
miG-19 farmer, 
supersonic fighter
aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(103 aircraft supplied
from 1958 to 1962)

1959
Maiden flight of 
the l-29 Delfín, 
the first jet trainer 
designed in Czecho-
slovakia (3,500 
aircraft supplied 
from 1963 to 1974)

1962
Maiden flight of the
miG-21 fishbed
supersonic fighter
aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(194 aircraft supplied
from 1962 to 1972)

1997
Maiden flight of the
single-seat light 
combat aircraft 
l-159 alca
(72 aircraft ordered 
by the Czech Air Force)

Starting a joint-enter-
prise with Taiwanese
AIDC to develop 
and produce ae270
civil aircraft

2002
Maiden flight 
of the l-159b 
two-seat advanced
training aircraft

1968
Maiden flight of the
in-house designed
and constructed jet
trainer l-39 albatros
(more than 2,900 
aircraft supplied 
from 1971 to 1999)

1986
Maiden flight of the
in-house designed
and constructed jet
trainer l-39ms – 
exported as l-59
super albatros
(60 aircraft supplied
from 1992 to 1996)

1954
Maiden flight of the
miG-15, jet fighter
aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(3,405 aircraft 
supplied from 1954 
to 1962)

l-39ng roll-out



2004
Supply of the l-159
aircraft for the Czech Air
Force completed
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2005
ae270 aircraft obtained 
an EASA Type Certificate

Aero signed a long-term
agreement regarding 
post-warranty support 
of the l-159 squadron

2006
ae270 aircraft 
obtained an FAA Type
Certificate

2008
Start of production of door 
subassemblies of the embraer
170/190 for Latecoere

Aero signed a contract 
with SAAB to produce 
Jas-39 Gripen pylons

2009
First international 
risk-sharing project 
agreement signed for 
the Bombardier CSeries 
and its fixed leading edge
development, certification
support and production

2010
black hawk uh-60m
cockpit production 
agreement signed 
with Sikorsky

l-410nG Landing gear

2011
Aero in partnership with Embraer
developed, designed and produced
the kc-390 aircraft. Aero is respon-
sible for the design and production
of wing leading edge, technological
development and production of all
seven doors, ramp and rear fuselage

Aero extended the Messier-Bugatti-
Dowty contract by adding production
of airbus a320 Landing gear

2012
PZL Mielec chose Aero
to supply the internati-
onal version of black
hawk s-70i helicopter
cockpits

2013
Alenia Aermacchi chose
Aero to supply airbus a321
14A section fuselage panels

2014
Start of development of the
L-39NG, the new generation
of the legendary L-39 aircraft 

tecnam P2012 Landing gear

2015
First flight of a re-engined
l-39cW

2016
Prototype of the new military
transport aircraft kc-390
visited AERO Vodochody 
after being displayed at Farn-
borough International Airshow.

The US partner of Aero, 
Draken International has 
started the flight operations 
of the fleet of L-159E 
aircraft. Restoring of L-159 
assembly line.

2017
The official renewal 
of l-159 production

Starting the assembly of
pre-series l-39nGs

2018
Certification of L-39CW

The L-39NG rollout cere-
mony (12. 10. 2018)

First flight of the new 
l-39nG aircraft
(22. 12. 2018)

first fligHt
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3,200
The L-39NG aircraft weighs 3.2 tons.  For comparison,  

the L-39 Albatros is 340 kilograms lighter.



februarY:

• Aero's 100th Anniversary. The com-
pany was established in Prague on
February 25, 1919, by incorporation
in the Business Register.

• The departure of Michal Flídr from
the position of Chief Financial Officer,
with Dieter John taking his position.

marcH:

• Based on the joint agreement with the
shareholders of the company, current
President and CEO Giuseppe Giordo
left Aero and has been replaced
by Dieter John who took over the
leadership of the company as of March
18, 2019.

• Mariusz Kedra has been appointed
as CFO for Aero with effect from
March 27, 2019.

• Chief Business Officer Massimo
Ghione left the company at the end
of March and Jakub Hoda has taken
over as head of Sales & Marketing.

• Secretary General Guido Mule
and Chief Risk Officer Antonio Di Micco
left Aero at the end of March. Their
responsibilities have been redistribu-
ted among the current management.

• Damiano Cotula has assumed res-
ponsibility for the Civil Programs
Management whilst keeping in charge
of strategy.

• Petr Brychta was elected a member
of the Board of Directors of AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

april:

• With affect from April 5, 2019, the new
organizational structure applied. The
overall concept operates along four
main clusters grouping the organi-
zation into expert, support, product
and operational functions.
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At the beginning of April 2019, Aero's new President & CEO
Dieter John introduced to employees and business partners
mid term stabilization plan: A3F - Aero Fit for Future. The new
strategy aims to stabilize Aero and prepare it for long-term
and sustainable growth.

Aero’s business strategy as it was set out by the previous
management almost three years ago will not change – Aero
will focus mainly on military programs, i.e. on development
and production and repairs, modernisation and upgrades
of Aero produced aircraft. The L-39NG program remains a key
priority and so do repairs, overhauls and modernizations of
national and international L-159 and L-39 fleets. In parallel
Aero will continue developing its third business pillar as a key
supplier of aerostructures and partner of renowned aircraft
manufacturers.

Implementation of A3F will lead to strong cost right sizing,
stringent spending control, rebalancing of payment terms and
stronger cash management focus. During A3F implementation,
Aero and its shareholder will continue to invest into the future
of the company. The A3F Strategy implemented will leverage
our unparalleled programmatic, technical and performance
capabilities and ensure Aero´s long-term growth and compe-
titiveness.

upcoming events

• Continuing in the L-39NG certification process.
• Delivery of L-152T2 to the Czech Air Force.
• Completion of L-159 deliveries to American company

Draken International.

In accordance with Section 447 of Act No 90/2012 Coll.,
on commercial companies and cooperatives (Business
Corporations Act), the Supervisory Board reviewed the
annual financial statements of AERO Vodochody AERO-
SPACE a.s. (ID: 24194204, hereinafter the Company) for
the period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018.

After discussing the annual financial statements and
hearing the opinion of the auditor, the Supervisory Board,
at its meeting on June 26, 2018, recommended the submit-
ted annual financial statements for the accounting period
from 01/01/2018 till 12/31/2018 for approval by the Annual
General Meeting.

The Supervisory Board also recommended to the AGM
to approve the proposal of the Board for a decision to
terminate operations for the accounting period from
01/01/2018 till 12/31/2018 as follows:

The sole shareholder decides that the loss identified
in the annual financial statements of the Company for 2017
in the amount of CZK 5,899 thousand will be paid from
previous years retained earnings.

in odolena voda on may 24, 2019

Ing. Dominika Kalinová
Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board

Ing. Jan Kříž
Member of the Supervisory Board

Jan Borýsek
Member of the Supervisory Board
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opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (the Company) prepared in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech
Republic, which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31,
2018, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. For
details of the Company, see Note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of  the Company as at
December 31, 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and
Auditing Standards of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Repu-
blic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amen-
ded by the related application clauses. Our responsibilities under
this law and regulation are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted by the Cham-
ber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these require-
ments. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

otHer information

In compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other in-
formation comprises the information included in the Annual Report
other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.
The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information. In connection with our audit of the financial state-
ments, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge ob-
tained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially missta-
ted. In addition, we assess whether the other information has
been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
applicable law or regulation, in particular, whether the other
information complies with law or regulation in terms of formal
requirements and procedure for preparing the other information
in the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance
with these requirements could influence judgments made on the
basis of the other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to
assess it, we report that:
• The other information describing the facts that are also pre-

sented in the financial statements is, in all material respects,
consistent with the financial statements; and 

• The other information is prepared in compliance with appli-
cable law or regulation.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the know-
ledge and understanding of the Company obtained in the audit,
on whether the other information contains any material missta-
tement. Based on the procedures we have performed on the
other information obtained, we have not identified any material
misstatement.

responsibilities of the company’s board of Directors 
and supervisory board for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic
and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determi-
nes is necessary to enable the preparation of financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is re-
sponsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going con-
cern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whe-
ther the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an au-
ditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with above regulations will always de-
tect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, indivi-
dually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regula-
tion, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professi-
onal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fi-
nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstate-
ment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omis-
sions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Supervi-
sory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

April 30, 2018
Prague, Czech Republic

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401

Radek Pav, Auditor
License No. 2042
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15,000
L-39NG airframe has service life up to 15,000 flight hours.
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CURRENT PRIOR YEAR
YEAR 2017

GROSS ALLOWANCES NET NET

total assets 9 392 597 -3 481 699 5 910 898 5 384 688 
a. stock subscriPtion receivable 0 0 

b. fiXeD assets 5 151 523 -2 701 291 2 450 232 1 918 073 

b. i. intangible fixed assets 1 425 243 -379 602 1 045 641 576 207    
B. I. 1. Research and development 0 0 0 0 

2. Valuable rights 605 201 -377 773 227 428 131 547  
1. Software 273 942 -249 809 24 133 15 110  
2. Other valuable rights 331 259 -127 964 203 295 116 437  

3. Goodwill -13 915 8 349 -5 566 -8 349 
4. Other intangible fixed assets 1 166 -1 007 159 276 

5. Advances granted for intangible fixed assets 
and intangible fixed assets in progress

832 791 -9 171 823 620 452 733 

1. Advances granted for intangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0 
2. Intangible fixed assets in progress 832 791 -9 171 823 620 452 733  

b. ii. tangible fixed assets 3 725 251 -2 321 689 1 403 562 1 340 843  
B. II. 1. Land and structures 1 176 054 -652 321 523 733 545 707

1. Land 18 206 0 18 206 18 206  
2. Structures 1 157 848 -652 321 505 527 527 501  

2. Movable assets and sets of movable assets 2 116 689 -1 638 042 478 647 448 975  
3. Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property 0 0 0 0 
4. Other tangible fixed assets 20 792 -11 647 9 145 12 204  

1. Perennial crops 0 0 0 0 
2. Livestock 0 0 0 0 
3. Miscellaneous tangible fixed assets 20 792 -11 647 9 145 12 204  

5. Advances granted for tangible fixed assets 
and tangible fixed assets in progress 411 716 -19 679 392 037 333 957 

1. Advances granted for tangible fixed assets 4 336 0 4 336 1 281 
2. Tangible fixed assets in progress 407 380 -19 679 387 701 332 676

b. iii. long-term investments 1 029 0 1 029 1 023  
B. III.1. Interests – controlled or controlling entity 1 029 0 1 029 1 023  

2. Loans and borrowings – controlled or controlling entity 0 0 0 0 
3. Interests – significant influence 0 0 0 0 
4. Loans and borrowings - significant influence 0 0 0 0 
5. Other long-term securities and interests 0 0 0 0 
6. Loans and borrowings - other 0 0 0 0 
7. Other long-term investments 0 0 0 0 

1. Miscellaneous long-term investments 0 0 0 0 
2. Advances granted for long-term investments 0 0 0 0 

CURRENT PRIOR YEAR
YEAR 2017

GROSS ALLOWANCES NET NET

c. current assets 3 751 492 -780 408 2 971 084 2 954 152

c. i. inventories 3 173 514 -774 754 2 398 760 1 972 956 
C. I. 1. Materials 1 561 974 -560 024 1 001 950 924 001  

2. Work in progress and semi-finished production 1 452 316 -210 269 1 242 047 843 859  
3. Finished products and goods 45 523 -530 44 993 41 766  

1. Finished products 0 0 0 0 
2. Goods 45 523 -530 44 993 41 766 

4. Livestock 0 0 0 0 
5. Advances granted for inventories 113 701 -3 931 109 770 163 330 

c. ii. receivables 477 675 -5 654 472 021 828 410 
c. ii. 1. long-term receivables 20 590 0 20 590 0 

1. Trade receivables 0 0 0 0 
2. Receivables – controlled or controlling entity 20 590 0 20 590 0 
3. Receivables – significant influence 0 0 0 0 
4. Deferred tax asset 0 0 0 0 
5. Other receivables 0 0 0 0 
5.1. Receivables from partners 0 0 0 0 
5.2. Long-term advances granted 0 0 0   0 
5.3. Unbilled revenue 0 0 0 0 
5.4. Miscellaneous receivables 0 0 0 0 

c. ii. 2. short-term receivables 457 085 -5 654 451 431 828 410 
1. Trade receivables 378 569 -4 238 374 331 705 637 
2. Receivables – controlled or controlling entity 15 614 0 15 614 33 316  
3. Receivables – significant influence 0 0 0 0 
4. Other receivables 62 902 -1 416 61 486 89 457  
4.1. Receivables from partners 0 0 0 0 
4.2. Social security and health insurance 0 0 0 0 
4.3. Due from government - tax receivables 16 994 0 16 994 42 692  
4.4. Short-term advances granted 34 665 0 34 665 30 587  
4.5. Unbilled revenue 6 918 0 6 918 5 262 
4.6. Miscellaneous receivables 4 325 -1 416 2 909 10 916 

c. iii. short-term financial assets 0 0 0 0 
1. Interests - controlled or controlling entity 0 0 0 0 
2. Other short-term financial assets 0 0 0 0 

c. iv. cash 100 303 0 100 303 152 786  
1. Cash in hand 4 969 0 4 969 6 196  
2. Cash at bank 95 334 0 95 334 146 590 

D. Prepaid expenses and accrued income 489 582 0 489 582 512 463 
D. 1. Prepaid expenses 123 817 0 123 817 137 745

2. Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) 229 420 0 229 420 63 590
3. Accrued income 136 345 0 136 345 311 128 
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CURRENT PRIOR YEAR 
YEAR 2017

total equity & liabilities 5 910 898 5 384 688  
a. equity 920 666 1 522 698

a. i. basic capital 1 002 000 1 002 000  
A. I. 1. Registered capital 1 002 000 1 002 000 

2. Own ownership interests (-) 0 0 
3. Changes in basic capital 0 0 

a. ii. share premium and revaluation reserve -32 262 9 537 
A. II. 1. Share premium 0 0 

2. Capital funds -32 262 9 537 
1. Other capital funds 0 0 
2. Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities (+/-) -33 693 8 106 
3. Gain or loss on revaluation upon corporate transformation (+/-) 0 0 
4. Differences arising on corporate transformation (+/-) 1 431 1 431 
5. Differences arising between balance sheet date and transformation date (+/-) 0 0 

a. iii. reserves from profit 1 169 1 309  
A. III.1. Other reserves 0 0 

2. Statutory and other reserves 1 169 1 309 
a. iv. Profit (loss) brought forward (+/-) 509 850 515 751  

IV. 1. Retained earnings 509 850 515 751  
2. Accumulated loss (-) 0 0 
3. Other profit (loss) brought forward (+/-) 0 0 

a. v. Profit (loss) for the year (+/-) -560 091 -5 899  
a. vi. approved decision on advances for profit distribution (-) 0 0

CURRENT PRIOR YEAR 
YEAR 2017

b. + c. Provisions anD liabilities 4 922 023 3 805 267 

b. Provisions 4 750 249 3 678 648 
B. 1. Provision for pensions and similar obligations 0 0 

2. Provision for corporate income tax 0 0 
3. Provisions recognized under special legislation 0 0 
4. Other provisions 171 774 126 619  

c. liabilities 4 750 249 3 678 648  
C. I. Long-term liabilities 2 420 634 1 054 880   

1. Bonds payable 0 0 
1. Convertible bonds 0 0 
2. Other bonds 0 0 

2. Amounts owed to credit institutions 995 049 1 034 139  
3. Long-term advances received 0 0 
4. Trade payables 0 0 
5. Long-term notes payable 0 0 
6. Liabilities – controlled or controlling entity 124 634 0
7. Liabilities – significant influence 0 0 
8. Deferred tax liability 0 0 
9. Other liabilities 4 251 20 741

1. Liabilities to partners 0 0 
2. Unbilled deliveries 0 0 
3. Miscellaneous liabilities 4 251 20 741  

c. ii. current liabilities 2 329 615 2 623 768  
1. Bonds payable 0 0 

1. Convertible bonds 0 0 
2. Other bonds 0 0 

2. Amounts owed to credit institutions 739 650 1 135 015  
3. Short-term advances received 541 787 399 475   
4. Trade payables 783 627 667 656  
5. Short-term notes payable 0 0 
6. Liabilities – controlled or controlling entity 1 084 134 714   
7. Liabilities – significant influence 0 0 
8. Other liabilities 263 467 286 908  

1. Liabilities to partners 0 0 
2. Short-term borrowings 0 0 
3. Liabilities to employees 54 619 51 218  
4. Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance 30 656 28 836  
5. Due to government – taxes and subsidies 10 850 9 710 
6. Unbilled deliveries 103 668 176 521  
7. Miscellaneous liabilities 63 674 20 623 

D. accruals and deferred income 68 209 56 723   
D. 1. Accruals 40 889 9 641 

2. Deferred income 27 320 47 082 



Annual Report 2018 
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Financial Statements 
as of December 31, 2018

52 53

CURRENT PRIOR YEAR
YEAR 2017

I. Revenue from sale of finished products and services 2 131 621 3 189 939  
II. Revenue from sale of goods 412 667 599 319  

a. Production-related consumption 2 667 603 2 920 866   
A.1. Cost of goods sold 387 301 411 190  
A.2. Consumption of material and energy 1 180 513 1 352 420 
A.3. Services 1 099 789 1 157 256 

b. change in inventory produced internally (+/-) -442 372 54 355  
c. own work capitalized (-) -506 167 -316 938 
D. Personnel expenses 1 256 805 1 286 202 

D.1. Wages and salaries 922 099 954 123  
D.2. Social security and health insurance costs and other costs 334 706 332 079  
D.2.1. Social security and health insurance costs 297 629 301 608
D.2.2. Other costs 37 077 30 471 

e. value adjustments in respect of operating activities 85 220 51 953  
E.1. Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets 138 636 113 097  
E.1.1. Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets - permanent 213 303 126 959 
E.1.2. Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets - temporary -74 667 -13 862 
E.2. Value adjustments in respect of inventory -27 660 -61 981 
E.3. Value adjustments in respect of receivables -25 756 837  

iii. other operating income 957 560 1 140 013   
III.1. Income from sale of fixed assets 40 893 15 920 
III.2. Income from sale of materials 42 289 54 770
III.3. Miscellaneous operating income 874 378 1 069 323 

f. other operating expenses 877 001 829 832 
F.1. Net book value of fixed assets sold 31 149 18  
F.2. Net book value of materials sold 23 225 26 381  
F.3. Taxes and charges relating to operations 4 838 4 775 
F.4. Provisions relating to operations and prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) -120 675 -318 908 
F.5. Miscellaneous operating expenses 938 464 1 117 566 

CURRENT PRIOR YEAR
YEAR 2017

* Profit or loss on operating activities (+/-) -436 242 103 001 

iv. income from long-term investments - interests 0 0
IV.1. Income from interests in subsidiaries or parents 0 0 
IV.2. Other income from interests 0 0 

G. cost of interests sold 0 0 
v. income from other long-term investments 0 0

V.1. Income from other long-term investments - subsidiaries or parents 0 0 
V.2. Other income from other long-term investments 0 0 

h. expenses relating to other long-term investments 0 0 
vi. interest receivable and similar income 1 688 1 746  

VI.1. Interest receivable and similar income - subsidiaries or parents 1 674 1 721  
VI.2. Other interest receivable and similar income 14 25

i. value adjustments and provisions relating to financial activities 0 0 
J. interest payable and similar expenses 92 478 51 251 

J.1. Interest payable and similar expenses - subsidiaries or parents 33 858 5 290 
J.2. Other interest payable and similar expenses 58 620 45 961

vii. other finance income 108 244 137 196
k. other finance cost 141 303 214 064  

* Profit or loss on financial activities (+/-) -123 849 -126 373 
** Profit or loss before taxation (+/-) -560 091 -23 372

l. income tax 0 -17 473 
L.1. Income tax due 0 -17 473 
L.2. Income tax deferred  (+/-) 0 0 

** Profit or loss after taxation (+/-) -560 091 -5 899 
m. transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-) 0 0 
*** Profit  or loss for the year  (+/-) -560 091 -5 899  
* net turnover 3 611 780 5 068 213 
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CURRENT PRIOR YEAR
YEAR 2017

cash flows from operating activities

Z. Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-) -560 091 -23 372
A. 1. Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities 266 112 -106 618  
A. 1. 1. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 238 310 132 179 
A. 1. 2. Change in allowances -128 083 -78 209  
A. 1. 3. Change in provisions 45 155 -317 106  
A. 1. 4. Foreign exchange differences 21 063 31 226 
A. 1. 5. (Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets -9 744 -15 902  
A. 1. 6. Interest expense and interest income 90 790 49 505 
A. 1. 7. Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received) 8 621 91 689  

net cash from operating activities before taxation, 
a * changes in working capital and extraordinary items -293 979 -129 990 

A. 2. Change in non-cash components of working capital 102 929 553 248 
A. 2. 1. Change in inventory -397 416 285 794 
A. 2. 2. Change in trade receivables 306 246 193 938 
A. 2. 3. Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue 54 858 682 712  
A. 2. 4. Change in trade payables 97 136 158 715 
A. 2. 5. Change in other payables, and in accruals and deferred income 42 105 -767 911

net cash from operating activities before taxation, 
a ** interest paid and extraordinary items -191 050 423 258 

A. 3. 1. Interest paid -54 648 -42 057 
A. 4. 1. Income Tax paid 0 -147 485
a *** net cash provided by (used in) operating activitie -245 698 233 716 

CURRENT PRIOR YEAR
YEAR 2017

cash flows from investing activities

B. 1. 1. Purchase of fixed assets -683 097 -457 306 
B. 2. 1. Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 40 893 15 920  
B. 3. 1. Loans granted -2 888 6 780  
B. 4. 1. Interest received 1 688 257  
B. 5. 1. Dividends received 0 0 

b *** net cash provided by (used in) investing activities -643 404 -434 349 

cash flows from financing activities

C. 1. Change in long-term liabilities, and long-term and short-term loans 836 759 161 518 

C. 2. 1. Effect of other changes in equity on cash 0 0 
C. 2. 2. Profit shares paid 0 0 
C. 2. 3. Effect of other changes in own capital on cash -140 -712  

c *** net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 836 619 160 806
f. net increase (decrease) in cash -52 483 -39 827  
P. cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 152 786 192 613 
r. cash and cash equivalents at end of year 100 303 152 786 
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9.38
The L-39NG has a wingspan of 9.38 meters.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition price and the
estimated useful life of the particular asset. The estimated useful life
is determined as follows:

Number of years
Software 3
Goodwill 5
Patents, royalties and similar rights according to contract

If it is found during the inventory that the value of intangible assets
is significantly lower than its value in the accounts, an adjustment
(allowance) is created for this asset. 

The costs of technical improvements of intangible fixed assets
increase their acquisition cost. Repairs and maintenance are recog-
nized as expense.

a) tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets over CZK 40 thousand are valued at acqui-
sition prices which include the acquisition price, freight cost,
customs duties and other acquisition related costs. 

Tangible fixed assets produced in the Company are valued at own
cost, which includes direct material and labor costs and produc-
tion overhead cost. 

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at
reproduction acquisition price and are accounted to the credit
of the other capital funds account.

The reproduction acquisition price of these assets is set on the
basis of its price at the time of the respective asset acquisition.
The costs of technical improvements of tangible fixed assets
increase their acquisition cost. Repairs and maintenance are
recognized as expense.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition price and the
estimated useful life of the particular asset. The estimated
useful life is determined as follows:

No. of years
Buildings 30 - 45
Machinery, instruments and equipment 10 - 30
Vehicles 8 - 20
Furniture and fixtures 4 - 15
Other fixed tangible assets 5 - 20

If it is found during the inventory that the value of tangible fixed
assets is significantly lower than its value in the accounts, an
adjustment is created for this asset.

1. description of tHe companY

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (“the Company”) is a public
limited liability company incorporated on December 15, 2011
under the name of TULAREO a.s. The Company’s registered
office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, postcode
250 70, Czech Republic. The business registration number (IČ)
is 24194204. The core business of the Company is cooperation
in producing helicopters and aircraft parts, foreign trade in mili-
tary products, development, production, repairs and moderniza-
tion of military training and combat aircraft, aerial work,
and operation of the Vodochody Airport.

shareholders holding 10% or more in the share capital:
TULAROSA a.s. 100%

The parent company of the Company is TULAROSA a.s. with its re-
gistered office located at Na Florenci 2116/15, Prague 1, Czech Re-
public, which is the sole shareholder of the Company. The parent
company of the entire group is PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared as
separate financial statements for the period from January 1, 2018
until December 31, 2018. Consolidated financial statements ac-
cording to Czech accounting standards are prepared by OAKFIELD
a.s., which is the parent company of TULAROSA a.s. and the Com-
pany is a part of the consolidation unit of the group OAKFIELD a.s.

members of statutory bodies as to December 31, 2018:
Board of Directors
Member: Giuseppe Giordo

Supervisory Board
Chairwoman: Ing. Dominika Kalinová
Member: Ing. Jan Kříž 
Member: Jan Borýsek

2. basic of presentation of financial 
statements

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared accor-
ding to Czech accounting standards valid for 2018 a 2017. 

3. general accounting principles, 
accounting metHods and variations 
of tHese metHods

The valuation methods applied by the Company in preparing the
financial statements for 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

a) intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets over CZK 60 thousand are depreciated in the
costs based on the assumed useful life of the particular asset. Small
intangible assets (up to CZK 60 thousand) are valued at acquisition
prices, they are expensed to costs on a one-off basis and carried only
in the operational records.

Fixed intangible assets produced in the Company is valuated by own
costs which include direct material and labor costs and production
overhead costs.

Goodwill arose as the difference between the valuation of the
business plant (or part thereof) acquired by transfer or transition
for a compensation or by deposit or by valuation of assets and liabi-
lities as part of the transformation of the business corporation,
except the change in legal form, and the sum of the individually
revalued components of the assets, reduced by assumed debt. 
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As at the balance sheet date, the derivatives are revalued to the real
value. Changes of real values of derivatives intended  for trading are
accounted to financial costs or revenues. Changes in the real values
of derivatives designated as securing the real value are also
accounted in financial costs or revenues, together with the corre-
sponding change in the real value of the secured asset or liability
related to the risk being secured. Changes of real values of derivati-
ves classified as cash flow hedges are accounted to equity and
reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on revaluation
of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recognized directly in financial costs or revenues. 

g) equity
The basic capital of the Company is shown at the amount recorded
in the Business Register of the Municipal Court. Any increase or
decrease of the basic capital based on the decision of the General
Meeting, which was not registered as at the balance sheet date,
is recorded as a change in basic capital. Contributions exceeding the
basic capital are recorded as share premium. Other capital funds are
created on the basis of the Articles of Association of the Company.

In compliance with the Business Corporations Act and with the
Articles of Association of the Company, the Company  is no longer
obliged to create a reserve fund.

h) liabilities
Long-term and short-term liabilities are shown at the nominal
values. Amounts found as a result of valuation of financial deri-
vatives at real value are also shown in the other liabilities item.

Long-term and short-term liabilities to credit institutions
are shown at their nominal value. Considered as short-term
liabilities to credit institutions are also parts of long-term liabi-
lities to credit institutions that are due within one year of the
balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities that are not shown in the balance sheet
because significant uncertainty in determining their amount, title
or fulfillment deadline, are recorded in Note 18.

i) leasing
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease
payments and capitalizing the corresponding value of the leased
assets at the time when the lease contract expires and the
purchase option is exercised. Lease payments paid in advance
are accrued.

j) foreign exchange operations
Assets and liabilities acquired in foreign currencies are valued
in Czech crowns at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of
their creation  and at the balance sheet date, items of monetary
nature were valued at the exchange rates valid as at December
31 published by the Czech National Bank.

Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses are
accounted in financial income or financial costs of the current year.

k) revenues and costs  
Revenues and costs are recognized on an accrual basis, that is,
to the period, which they relate to as to material and time.

The Company accounts to the debit of costs creation of reserves
and adjustments to cover all risks, losses and impairments that
are known as at the day of the balance sheet built.

Gains arising from long-term contracts are accounted only when
the order is completed and invoiced in the manner laid down in
the contract concluded.

b) financial assets
TULAROSA a.s. 100%

Fixed financial assets consist mainly of equity (property shares)
and shareholdings.

Equity and shareholdings are valued at acquisition prices, which
include the acquisition price and direct costs related to the
acquisition, e.g. fees and commissions to brokers and stock
exchanges. 

As at December 31, equity constituting controlling or significant
influence is valued at the acquisition price. If there is a decrease
in the accounting value of financial fixed assets that are not
revalued at the end of the balance sheet date, the difference
is considered a temporary diminution in value and is recorded
as an adjustment.

c) funds
The funds consist of valuables, cash in hand and on bank
accounts.

d) inventories
Purchased inventories are valued at acquisition prices using the
weighted arithmetic average method. Acquisition price of the
inventories includes their acquisition costs including their acquisi-
tion-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc.).

Products, semi-finished products and work in progress are valued
at planned own costs, which correspond to actual own costs. Own
costs include direct material and labor costs and production
overhead costs. Production overhead costs include energy, repairs
and maintenance, telecommunications, IT costs, depreciation and
other services and materials, and they are allocated based on direct
labor costs.

e) receivables
Receivables are valued at nominal value. Valuation of doubtful
receivables is reduced by adjustments to the debit of costs of their
realization value.

f) Derivatives 
Derivatives are initially valued at acquisition prices. In the accompa-
nying balance-sheet, derivatives are shown as part of other
short-term liabilities.

Derivatives are classified as derivatives for trading and hedging. 

The hedging derivatives are arranged in order to secure real value
or cash flow. In order to be possible to qualify a derivative as
hedging, the changes in the real value or changes of cash flow
resulting from the hedging derivatives shall completely or in part
compensate for the changes in the real value or the hedged item
or for the change in cash flow resulting from the hedged item, and
the Company shall document  and demonstrate the existence of the
hedging relation and a high securing efficiency. In other cases, these
are  derivatives intended for trading.
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l) income tax
Expense for income tax is calculated using the applicable tax rate
from the accounting profit increased or decreased by perma-
nently or temporarily non-deductible costs and non-taxable
revenues (e.g. creation  and accounting of other reserves and
adjustments, expenses for representation, differences between
book  and tax depreciation, etc.). In addition, the following items
are taken into consideration: tax decreasing items (donations),
tax deductible items (tax loss, research and development imple-
mentation costs) and income tax reliefs.

The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of tempo-
rary differences between the carrying amounts of assets  and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and calculation of the
income tax taking into consideration the period of realization.

m) subsidies
The subsidies to cover costs are accounted upon receipt of the
subsidy from other operating revenues observing the material
matching and accrual principles applied to accounting for the
defined purpose. The subsidies for the acquisition of long-term
intangible or tangible assets and technical improvements,
and the subsidies to cover interest included in the acquisition
cost, either reduce the related acquisition price or own cost.
Received subsidies are recorded by the Company in separate
accounts so that it would be possible to monitor their withdrawal
and utilization.

n) estimates and accruals
The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
values of assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and
the reported values of revenues  and costs during the reporting
period. The Company management prepared these estimates
and predictions based on all relevant information available
to them. However, given the nature of estimates, the actual
values  may differ from these estimates in the future.

o) subsequent events
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date
and the date of preparation of the financial statements, are reflected
in the financial statements in the case that these events provided
further evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date.

In case that important events occurred between the balance sheet
date and the date of the financial statements taking into account facts
that occurred after the balance sheet date, the effects of these events
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements but they are not
recorded in the financial statements.

oPeninG closinG
balance aDDitions DisPosals transfers balance

Software 258 673 - - 15 269 273 942
Patents, royalties and similar rights 229 806 - -36 286 137 739 331 259
Goodwill -13 915 - - - -13 915
Other intangible assets 1 166 - - - 1 166
Intangible assets in progress  461 904 523 895 - -153 008 832 791
total 2018 937 634 523 895 -36 286 - 1 425 243
total 2017 623 949 313 685 - - 937 634

oPeninG closinG aDJustment book
balance DesPreciation sales DisPosals balance items value

Software -243 563 -6 246 - - -249 809 - 24 133
Patents, royalties
and similar rights

-95 816 -32 700 -19 909 36 286 -112 139 -15 825 203 295

Goodwill 5 566 2 783 - - 8 349 - -5 566
Other intangible assets -890 -117 - - 1 007 - 159
Intangible assets 
in progress - - - - - -9 171 823 620

total 2018 -334 703 -36 280 -19 909 36 286 -354 606 -24 996 1 045 641
total 2017 -325 920 -8 783 - - -334 703 -26 724 576 207

4. fixed assets

a) intangible fixed assets (in cZk thousands)

Purchase Price

In 2016, the Company bought a part of the plant of Vodochody
Airport a.s. Goodwill at the negative value of CZK -13,915 thou-
sand arose as a difference between the valuation of the part of
the plant and the sum of the individually revalued components
of assets reduced by the liabilities acquired. 

Provisions anD accumulateD amortiZation

Negative Goodwill is amortized evenly over a period of 60
months. In the profit and loss statement, the amortization
is shown in the item Other financial income. In 2018, depreciation
in the amount of CZK 2,783 thousand was recognized as reve-
nue. The net book value of negative Goodwill as at December 31,
2018 amounted to CZK -5,566 thousand. 
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Intangible assets in progress as at December 31, 2018 and De-
cember 31, 2017 represents, in particular, the assets developed
internally within the development of the L-39NG and recon-
struction of the L-159B aircraft.

The total amount of low value intangible assets not shown in the
balance sheet amounted, as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
in the acquisition prices to CZK 6,064 thousand and CZK 6,064
thousand respectively. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
fixed intangible assets at the acquisition price of CZK 290,955
thousand and CZK 268,057 thousand was fully depreciated.

The Company adjusted the valuation of the long term intangible
assets for diminution in value through an adjustment charged to
cost (refer to Note 7). The amount of adjustment as at December
31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK 24,996 thousand and CZK
26,724 thousand.

a) tangible fixed assets (in cZk thousands)

oPeninG final
balance aDDitions DisPosals transfers balance

Land 18 206 - - - 18 206
Constructions 1 149 934 - - 7 914 1 157 848
Machinery, instruments and equipment 1 828 908 - -97 576 129 793 1 861 125
Vehicles 243 771 - - 3 402 247 173
Furniture and fixtures 8 395 - -60 56 8 391
Other fixed tangible assets 20 886 - -94 - 20 792
Tangibles in progress 376 340 172 205 - -141 165 407 380
Advances for tangibles  1 281 11 295 -8 240 - 4 336
total 2018 3 647 721 183 500 -105 970 - 3 725 251
total 2017 3 515 221 156 503 -24 003 - 3 647 721

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, a part of non-production buildings
at the acquisition price in the amount of CZK 14,250 thousand and
CZK 14,250 thousand respectively and a net book value in the amount
of CZK 5,238 thousand and CZK 5,595 thousand, were located outside
the Company’s production plant (accommodation facilities). 

As at December 31, 2018, the acquisition value of assets with
limited disposal rights was CZK 711,872 thousand and their net
book value was CZK 300,542 thousand. As at December 31, 2017,
the acquisition value of assets with limited disposal rights was
CZK 707,973 thousand and their net book value was CZK 315,344
thousand. This land charge is related to the framework contract
on post-warranty support for the aircraft L-159 and L-39 (refer to
Note 18) and it is not registered in the Land Register. 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the acquisition and the net book
price of the pledged assets to loans provided amounted to CZK
134,593 thousand and CZK 72,770 thousand, or CZK 152,622 thou-
sand and CZK 142,446 thousand respectively (refer to Note 13). 

In 2018 and 2017, the Company did not receive subsidies for
tangible fixed assets.

Provisions anD accumulateD amortiZation

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, tangibles in progress include
in particular production tools for projects Embraer and L-39NG.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the total value of small tan-
gible fixed assets, which are not shown in the balance sheet, in-
cluding small tangible fixed assets located at delivery stations,
amounted at CZK 1,190,358 thousand and CZK 826,726 thousand
in acquisition prices. Increase in value is caused by implementing
L-39NG project.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the long-term tangible as-
sets at the acquisition price of CZK 880,108 thousand and CZK
805,373 thousand was fully depreciated.

The Company adjusted the valuation of the fixed tangible assets
for diminution in value through an adjustment charged to cost
(refer to Note 7). The amount of adjustment as at December 31,
2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK 196,665 thousand and CZK
269,604 thousand.

oPeninG closinG
balance DePreciation sales DisPosals balance aDJustments book  value

Land - - - - - - 18 206
Constructions -622 433 -29 888 - - -652 321 - 505 527
Machinery, instruments
and equipment -1 268 347 -127 074 -11 146 97 576 -1 308 991 -176 986 375 148

Vehicles -129 508 -14 230 - - -143 738 - 103 435
Furniture and fixtures -8 304 -83 - 60 -8 327 - 64
Other fixed tangible assets -8 682 -2 965 -94 94 -11 647 - 9 145
Tangibles in progress - - - - - -19 679 387 701
Advances for tangibles - - - - - - 4 336
total 2017 -2 037 274 -174 240 -11 240 97 730 -2 125 024 -196 665 1 403 562
total 2016 -1 930 255 -115 393 -298 8 672 -2 037 274 -269 604 1 340 843
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5. inventories

Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventories have been reduced
to the selling price through the adjustment account, which
is shown in the accompanying balance sheet in the correction
column. The adjustment was determined by the Company
management based on the analysis of age of the inventories
and their applicability in future periods (refer to Note 7).

Material and Work in progress are pledged in favor of Česká
exportní banka a.s. and Komerční banka a.s.

Of the total amount of prepayments for inventory in 2018
and 2017 in the amount of CZK 113,701 thousand and CZK
166,533 thousand, CZK 46,472 thousand and CZK 52,226 thou-
sand respectively form advance payments for the purchase from
the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic as part of the
business case L-159.

aDJustments to December 31, 2018 Work in ProGress anD PrePayments aDJustment
(in thousanD cZk): material semi-finisheD ProDucts  GooDs for inventory items total

L-159 128 083 68 077 - 531 196 691
L-39 49 081 26 125 - - 75 206
L-59 37 986 1 335 - - 39 321
Ae270 30 436 20 406 - - 50 842
Sikorsky project 174 744 33 148 525 2 502 210 919
Black Hawk project 3 768 2 293 - - 6 061
Sonaca programm 22 286 6 580 - 333 29 199
KC-390 programm 4 043 4 960 5 - 9 008
A321 project 45 599 21 633 - - 67 232
Stelie programm 6 492 2 308 - - 8 800
Other inventories 57 506 23 404 - 565 81 475
total 560 024 210 269 530 3 931 774 754

Estimated accounts active as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
include estimated items of unpaid interest on the loans to related
parties (refer to Note 21).

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, receivables from Sonaca,
Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) totaling CZK
133,011 thousand and CZK 400,865 are subject of collateral for
loans granted (refer to Note 13).

Long- and short-term receivables from related parties (refer
to Note 21).

6. receivables

Adjustments were created for outstanding receivables that are con-
sidered doubtful based on their analysis (refer to Note 7). As at De-
cember 31, 2018 and 2017, receivables overdue for more than 180
days amounted to CZK 24,970 thousand and CZK 33,909 thousand.

In 2018 and 2017, the Company ceded receivables in the amount of
CZK 793,805 thousand and CZK 986,513 thousand. Revenues from
these receivables in 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK 788,495 thou-
sand and CZK 981,550 thousand. The nominal value of these re-
ceivables and revenue from their assignment are shown in the
accompanying profit and loss statement in other operating ex-
penses, or other operating income.

creation of accountinG creationof accountinG
aDJustment balance aDJustment  of aDJustment balance  aDJustment of aDJustment balance
items to: 31.12.2016 item item 31.12.2017 item item 31.12.2018

Tangible fixed assets 281 749 - -12 145 269 604 23 678 -96 617 196 665
Intangible assets 28 441 - -1 717 26 724 3 655 -5 383 24 996
Inventories 861 192 124 283 -190 445 795 030 127 671 -152 408 770 293
Advances on supplies 3 203 - - 3 203 3 931 -3 203 3 931 
Goods - 4 181 - 4 181 - -3 651 530
Receivables - legal 293 - - 293 - -6 287
Receivables - other 30 268 837 - 31 105 4 785 -30 523 5 367
total 1 205 146 129 301 -204 307 1 130 140 163 720 -291 791 1 002 069

7. adjustments

Adjustments reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets
(shown in Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the adjustment accounts (in CZK thousands):
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9. active accruals and deferals

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, prepaid expenses include in
particular accrued rent, insurance premiums and overhead
costs, which are charged to the costs of the period, in which they
belong as to material and time.

Complex deferred charges as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 in-
clude mainly the accrued costs of development of the L-39NG
and costs related to the STA program. 

As at December 31, 2018, the accrued income amounted to CZK
136,345 thousand and included mainly the conjecture of sales of
the Iraq. As at December 31, 2017, the accrued income amoun-
ted to CZK 311,128 thousand and they included mainly the con-
jecture of sales of the Iraq business case in the amount of CZK
304,624 thousand.

10. eQuitY

Basic capital of the Company in the amount of CZK 1,002,000
thousand consists of 5,010 pieces of ordinary registered shares
in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand,
and it is fully paid.

Other funds from profit are represented by a social fund. Diffe-
rences from revaluation of assets and liabilities as at December
31, 2018 and 2017, represent the revaluation of derivative tran-
sactions (see Note 15) and the revaluation of the share in the con-
trolled company Clester Trading a.s.

Based on decision of the sole shareholder in the force of the Ge-
neral Meeting of June 29, 2018, it was approved to cover the loss
for 2017 in the amount of CZK 5,899 thousand by transferring
from the account of retained earnings. On the basis of decision of
the sole shareholder in the force of the General Meeting of June
30, 2017, distribution of profit for 2016 was approved in the
amount of CZK 39,153 thousand by transferring to the account
of retained earnings.

8. casH and banks

As at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company
had the following balances of accounts with restricted disposal
(in thous. CZK).

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a se-
curity for guarantees granted by the banks (refer to Note 13). As
at December 31, 2018 a 2017, the Company had deposited funds
in the accounts in the amount of CZK 72,479 thousand and CZK
57,746 thousand. All bank accounts in addition to the above men-
tioned bank accounts with restricted disposal are pledged in
favor of Komerční banka, a.s. and the Czech Export Bank, a.s.
(refer to Note 13).

Based on the Framework Contract and Supplements on the pro-
vision of financial services dated December 14, 2016 with the Ko-
merční banka, a.s., the company has the possibility to draw an
overdraft up to the amount of CZK 120,000 thousand. Based on
amendment to this contract from June 28, 2018 the amount of
overdraft has been continually decreased to final amount of CZK
60,000 thousand as of November 30, 2018.

In 2018 and 2017, the loan was drawn and repaid continuously, its
balance as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to CZK
57,841 thousand and CZK 113,403 thousand (refer to Note 13).

On the basis of the Contract on the credit line of August 9, 2012
and the Amendments with Česká spořitelna, a.s., the company has
the option to draw an overdraft of up to CZK 50,000 thousand. In
2018 and 2017, the loan was drawn and repaid continuously, its
balance as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 amoun-
ted to CZK 38,848 thousand and CZK 0 thousand (refer to Note 13).
Deposits in accounts with related parties (refer to Note 20).

11. provisions

Changes in provisions (in CZK thousands):

balance as creatinG clearance of balance as creatinG clearance of balance as
reserves at 31.12.2016 reserves reserves at 31.12.2017 reserves reserves at 31.12.2018

Business case Iraq 177 773 25 622 -177 773 25 622 31 166 -28 646 28 142
Business case AČR 6 802 - -6 802 - 15 732 - 15 732
Business case Tunisia and Algeria 11 473 13 047 -10 686 13 834 1 836 -13 053 2 617
Business case Lithuania 2 204 - -2 204 - - - -
Business case Bulgaria 3 203 - -3 203 - - - -
Business case EMBRAER 4 474 4 594 -6 049 3 019 15 235 -263 17 991
Business case CSeries 7 177 5 021 -6 247 5 951 2 583 -763 7 771
Business case Sikorsky 57 442 7 707 -57 335 7 814 5 572 -106 13 280
Business case Black Hawk 8 520 3 327 -2 967 8 880 1 080 -3 427 6 533
Business case  CWB 6 159 2 439 -2 767 5 831 - -5 383 448
Business case A321 438 402 -336 504 - -198 306
Business case STELIA 10 285 3 549 -13 404 430 - -28 402
Business case MTA - 116 - 116 103 - 219
Bonuses and rewards 
to employees 127 483 32 850 -126 412 33 921 47 737 -26 778 54 880

On unpaid holidays 20 292 40 254 -39 849 20 697 2 756 - 23 453
total 443 725 138 928 -456 034 126 619 123 800 -78 645 171 774
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12 sHort and long term liabilities

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had short-term
overdue liabilities totaling CZK 442,563 thousand and CZK
323,447 thousand. Estimated payables as at December 31, 2018
and 2017 include, in particular, unbilled supplies of material and
services. They are recognized in the period in which they were
incurred. Advances received as at December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 include, in particular, the advances related
to the sale of the L-159 aircraft and advances related to the deve-
lopment of the L-39NG aircraft.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company records liabilities
from social security and health insurance within the due date
in the amount of CZK 30,656 thousand and CZK 28,836 thousand. 

The company has concluded with SG Equipment Finance Czech
Republic s.r.o. a credit agreement with a fixed rate. Status
of loans from SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. as at
December 31 (in thousand CZK):

Long-term portion of loans is classified in the “Other long-term
liabilities” line. Current portion of loans is classified in the “Other
current liabilities” line.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, other current liabilities include
also negative real values of opened derivatives (see Note 15).
Payables to related parties (see Note 21).

2018 2017
interest amount amount

Due Date rate in thousanD cZk in thousanD cZk

SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. 15. 11. 2019 0,449 % 2 371 4 866
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. 15. 12. 2019 0,449 % 4 482 8 797
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o 15. 2. 2020 0,449 % 14 038 25 582
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. 15. 2. 2023 1,755 % 2 871 -
total 23 762 39 245
Repayment in the following year 19 511 18 506
Repayments in future years 4 251 20 741

13. amounts owed to credit institutions

amount 31. 12. 2018 amount 31. 12. 2017
interest  overall in foreiGn  amount in in foreiGn amount in

bank Due Date rate limit currency thousanD cZk currency thousanD cZk

Komerční banka a.s., 
Česká spořitelna, a.s. 
and Československá obchodní 31.3.2018 1M PRIBOR 980 000 - - - 623 456
banka, a.s. as financing + margin thous. CZK
of the Sikorsky and Black Hawk
programs
Komerční banka, a.s. 
Black Hawk 21.3.2021 1M PRIBOR 180 000 - 180 000 - -
Program + margin thous. CZK
financing
Komerční banka, a.s. - financing
of production cost of the 30.4.2019 1M PRIBOR 290 000 - 290 000 - 274 477
Contract for Work with ACR + margin thous. CZK
„Modification for L-159“
Česká exportní banka, a.s. 31.12.2021 3M PRIBOR 378 000 - 170 064 - 226 752
– program Sonaca + margin thous. CZK
Česká exportní banka, a.s. 31.12.2022 6M PRIBOR 550 000 - 406 075 - 473 066
– program Embraer + margin thous. CZK
Česká exportní banka, a.s. 3M PRIBOR 260 000
– programs Embraer 10.11.2019 + margin thous. CZK - 260 000 - 260 000
and CSeries
Česká exportní banka, a.s. 6M PRIBOR 320 000
Financing of the L-39NG 30.6.2025 + margin thous. CZK - 320 000 - 198 000
production costs
Komerční banka a.s. O/N PRIBOR 60 000 
– overdraft 2.1.2020 + margin thous. CZK - 57 841 - 113 403

Česká spořitelna, a.s. 1M PRIBOR 50 000
– overdraft 31.8.2019 + margin thous. CZK - 38 848 - 20 290

Bankovní loans
– unpaid interest n/a n/a n/a - 11 841 - -

total 1 734 699 2 169 154
Repayment in the follwing year 739 650 1 135 015
Repayments in future years 995 049 1 034 139
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as at December 31, 2017 the following pledges are in favor
of the aforementioned loans: 
– security of receivables (see Note 6),  
– security of current accounts (see Note 8), 
– blank bills issued,
– guarantee issued by Penta Investments Limited up to the

amount of CZK 798 mil., 
– security of inventories (see Note 5), 
– security of shares of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. on the

basis of an agreement with the parent company TULAROSA a.,
– pledge of property (see Note 4b),  
– pledge of movable assets (see Note 4b), 

Total interest cost for all bank loans and special-purpose consu-
mer loans received (see Note 12) for 2018 and 2017 amounts
to CZK 58,620 thousand and CZK 45,961 thousand.

as at December 31, 2018 the following pledges are in favor
of the aforementioned loans:    
– security of receivables (see Note 6),  
– security of current accounts (see Note 8), 
– blank bills issued,
– guarantee issued by Penta Investments Limited up to the

amount of CZK 798 mil., 
– security of inventories (see Note 5), 
– security of shares of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. on the

basis of an agreement with the parent company TULAROSA a.,
– pledge of property (see Note 4b),  
– pledge of movable assets (see Note 4b), 

Within the above-mentioned loan agreements to finance the pro-
gram Sikorsky and Black Hawk, program Embraer, programs
KC-390 and CSeries and project L-39NG, the company undertook
to comply with the following financial indicators:

As of December 31, 2018, the Company did not comply with the
indicated ratio indicators. 

inDicator DescriPtion requireD
name of calculation value

Net debt (Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA (including adjustments < 3,9:1
relating to disposal / sale of inventories acquired prior to 2007)
(Net profit + depreciation + change in reserves and provisions

Credit coverage change in inventories - Change in short-term receivables + change in current > 150%
liabilities - CAPEX + cost interest) / (cost interest)

Adjusted (Total liabilities - Subordinated inter-group loans - Received prepayments

debt indicator – Deferred revenues) / (Total assets - Advance payments received  < 65%
– Deferred future revenues)

Based on the above-described loan contract for financing the So-
naca program concluded with the Česká exportní banka, a.s., the
Company has undertaken to fulfill the following financial indicators:

As of December 31, 2018, the Company did not comply with the
indicated ratio indicators. 

inDicator DescriPtion requireD
name of calculation value

Net debt Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA (including adjustments < 3,9:1
relating to disposal / sale of inventories acquired prior to 2007)
(Total liabilities – Subordinated inter-group loans – Received 

Financial lever prepayments – Deferred revenues) / (Total assets – Advance < 65%
payments received – Deferred future revenues)

As at December 31, 2018, the banks provided the following
guarantees (in thous. CZK):

bank tyPe of Guarantee  valiD until amount

Komerční banka, a.s. performance bond indefinite 928
performance bond indefinite 1 917
performance bond indefinite 900
performance bond indefinite 2 573
performance bond indefinite 4 483
performance bond indefinite 4 502
performance bond indefinite 1 942
performance bond 31. 1. 2019 4 502
performance bond 4. 5. 2021 51 450
performance bond 31. 10. 2020 463
performance bond indefinite 2 058
performance bond indefinite 4 502
advance payment 31. 12. 2019 69 678
advance payment 30. 6. 2020 137 699

ČEB, a.s. advance payment 15. 3. 2019 4 626
performance bond 15. 1. 2020 22 240

total 314 463
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As at December 31, 2017, the banks provided the following
guarantees (in thous. CZK):

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company guaranteed the
issued bank guarantees with money in bank accounts with
restricted disposal in the amount of CZK 72,479 thous. and
CZK 57,746 thous. (refer to Note 8).

14. pasive accruals and deferals

Deferred revenues as at December 31, 2018 include accrued
sales related to ST Aerospace business case. Deferred revenues
as at December 31, 2017 include accrued sales related to busi-
ness cases Iraq and are recognized as income in the periods
in which they arise. 

bank tyPe of Guarantee  valiD until amount

Komerční banka, a.s. performance bond indefinite 945
performance bond indefinite 2 554
performance bond indefinite 4 451
performance bond indefinite 1 903
performance bond indefinite 894
performance bond indefinite 2 554
performance bond indefinite 4 451
performance bond indefinite 4 470
performance bond indefinite 1 928
performance bond indefinite 4 470
performance bond indefinite 42 582
performance bond indefinite 460
performance bond indefinite 1 703

ČEB, a.s. performance bond 30. 3. 2018 81 571
advance payment 30. 3. 2018 94 205

total 249 075

15. derivatives

As at December 31, 2018, the Company has concluded hedging
derivative, which the Company revalued to real value.  The nega-
tive real value of hedging derivatives is recognized in the balance
sheet in other liabilities (see Note 12) and in the differences from
revaluation of assets and liabilities (see Note 10). 

The following table summarizes nominal values and negative
real values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at December
31, 2018 (in CZK thous.):

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that were entered into to
manage currency and interest rate risk of assets and liabilities
and meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

The following table summarizes nominal values and negative
real values of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at
December 31, 2018 (in CZK thous.):

The following table summarizes nominal values and negative
real values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at December
31, 2017 (in CZK thous.):

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that were entered into to
manage currency and interest rate risk of assets and liabilities
and meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

The following table summarizes nominal values and negative
real values of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at
December 31, 2017 (in CZK thous.):

2018
real value

(thous. cZk) nominal Positive neGative

Option 1 078 368 - 33 698
heDGinG Derivatives
total 1 078 368 - 33 698

2017
real value

(thous. cZk) nominal Positive neGative

Option 1 021 968 8 106 -
heDGinG Derivatives 
total 1 021 968 8 106 -

2018
real value

(thous. cZk) nominal Positive neGative

Option 107 837 - 7 281
Swapy 134 685 - 141
Forwards 154 350 - 1 199
total traDinG
Derivates 396 872 - 8 621

2017
real value

(thous. cZk) nominal Positive neGative

Opce 102 197 - 1 562
Forwardy 306 480 485 -
total traDinG
Derivates 408 677 485 1 562
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16. corporate income tax

The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in thous. CZK) 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did not record
a deferred tax asset in the amount of CZK 357,120 thousand
and CZK 271,034 thousand with respect to the uncertainty of
its utilitization. 

2018 2017
(in thous. cZk) (in thous. cZk)

Profit before tax -560 091 -23 372
Differences between book and tax depreciation -126 809 -116 191
Non-deductible expenses:

Change in provisions, net -128 065 -75 006
Change in reserves, net 45 155 -317 106
Shortages and damages 76 345 18 472
Others (e.g. expenses for representations, assignment of receivables, contractual penalties) 92 830 33 885

Tax base -600 635 -479 318
The rate of income tax 19 % 19 %
Tax - -
Adjustment of tax from previous years - -17 473
Due tax - -17 473

31. 12. 2018 31. 12. 2017
DeferreD DeferreD DeferreD DeferreD 

DeferreD taX items aX asset taX liability aX asset taX liability

The difference between the accounting
and tax carrying value of fixed assets - -72 999 - -57 225
Tax loss from previous years 200 740 - 91 070 -
Other temporary differences:

Adjustments to receivables and advances on inventories 1 767 - 7 313 -
Adjustments to inventories 146 456 - 151 056 -
Adjustments to fixed assets 42 116 - 56 302 -
Reserves 32 637 - 24 058 -
Hedging derivatives 6403 - - -1 540

total 430 119 -72 999 329 799 -58 765
Net 357 120 - 271 034 -

17. leasing

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the
balance sheet (see Note 3j). 

The assets leased by the Company under operating leases as at
December 31, 2018 (in thous. CZK):

Assets leased by the Company in a form of financial leasing
(i.e. the lessee buys the assets when the lease term expires)
as at December 31, 2018:

amount amount acquisition
of lease of lease Price at the

terms in 2018 in 2017 oWner

Information technologies until 2021 5 944 6 178 25 510

the sum of lease financial leasinG scheDule of future Payments accorDinG
Payments over rental Payments o the actual maturity as at 31.12.2018

the eXPecteD actually PaiD Due Within Due after
DescriPtion terms lease as at 31. 12. 2018 one year one year

Machinery until 2023 36 973 23 896 5 265 7 812
4 050 2 996 550 504
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The value of future obligations arising from contracts entered
into as of December 31, 2018 reached CZK 1,167,498 thousand.
The highest value of orders is at the Ministry of Defence of the
Czech Republic, the company AIR LIQUIDE and Honeywell-ITC.
These contracts normally include a provision stipulating the
amount of compensations that the Company is obliged to pay if
it fails to fulfill contractual obligations or if it withdraws from the
contract. In addition, the suppliers also do not accept responsi-
bility for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.

The Company has concluded insurance of liability resulting from
its own flight operations, among other liability from the operation
of aircraft including accident insurance, liability from the operation
of hangars, liability from the operation of airport and navigational
tower, liability for damage caused by a defective product. For the
insurance of liability for damage caused by defective products, the
total limit is agreed in the amount of USD 250,000 thousand with
sub-limits for selected projects, of which USD 250,000 thousand
for the Sikorsky project and USD 200,000 thousand for the SAAB
project. This insurance is concluded with the worldwide validity and
it covers most predictable risks arising from aviation activities.

18. off-balance assets and liabilities

The company routinely uses mediation services on a contractual
basis. In case of concluding a business relationship with a cus-
tomer, an obligation results from these contracts to pay the
provider the amount of income realized. This amount can not
be determined until the contract is concluded.

On December 8, 2005, AERO Vodochody a.s. entered into a master
contract with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic on after
warranty support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft, in which it commit-
ted to cooperate in the repair, maintenance, and modernization
of the aircraft. The contract was signed for a definite period until
January 2029. In the Project of separation, the contract was trans-
ferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In case of breach of
contractual relationships, as well as in case of withdrawal from the
contract, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic may
demand from the Company a contractual penalty and then also
claim possible damages exceeding the amount of this penalty.
Under the terms of this contract, the Company committed to limi-
ted disposal of a significant portion of its fixed assets (see Note 4b).
The main production orders of the Company are dealt with in the
context of long-term contractual relationships with suppliers.

nistry of Defence of Iraq. In the other operating income in 2018
and 2017, the Company records subsidies for operating purposes
received from the state budget in the amount of CZK 64,319
thousand and CZK 55,658 thousand.

19. revenues

The breakdown of revenues of the Company from ordinary acti-
vities (in CZK thousands):

The prevailing portion of the revenues in 2018 and 2017 was
concentrated on three major customers in the aerospace sector,
which are the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic,
Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) and the Mi-

2018 2017
Domestic foreiGn Domestic foreiGn

Aerospace production 742 512 1 775 563 480 316 3 276 908
Non-aerospace production 20 657 - 32 034 -
total revenues 763 169 1 781 119 512 350 3 276 908

The Company sells products and provides loans and services
to related parties. In 2018 and 2017, revenues from these activi-
ties, including interest revenues, amounted to CZK 2,643 thou-
sand (of which interest revenues amounted to CZK 1,674
thousand) and CZK 2,907 thousand (of which the interest revenue
amounted to CZK 1,721 thousand).

Loans granted to related parties as at December 31 (in thousand CZK):

2018 2017
total number members of manaGement total number members of manaGement
of emPloyees anD suPervisory boDies of emPloyees anD suPervisory boDies

Average number of employees 1 732 4 1 767 5
Wages and salaries 899 654 22 445 917 328 36 795
Social security and health insurance 294 934 2 695 297 759 3 849
Social costs 37 077 - 30 471 -
total Personnel eXPenses 1 256 805 25 140 1 245 558 40 644

20. personnel expenses

Breakdown of personnel expenses (in CZK thousands):

In 2018 and 2017, the members of the management and supervisory
bodies received by reason of their functions the remuneration in the
total amount of CZK 22,445 thousand and CZK 36,795 thousand.

21. related parties informations

In 2018 and 2017, members of statutory and supervisory bodies and
executive officers have received no loans, guarantees, advances and
other benefits, and they do not hold any shares of the Company.

maturity amount in oriGinal
/ interest rates currency (ths.) 2018 2017

AERO Vodochody a.s. - in CZK 30. 8. 2020 / 4,02 % - - -
Clester Trading  a.s. - in EUR 22. 7. 2019 / 7,58 % 179 4 609 4 512
Clarex Investments a.s. - in EUR 16. 9. 2020 / 7,58 % 500 12 873 10 216
Clarex Investments a.s. - in EUR 31. 12. 2020 / 6,10 % 300 7 717 7 662
Clarex směnka - in EUR 428 11 005 10 926
total 36 204 33 316
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a.s. in the amount of EUR 800 thousand, and by Amendment No.
6 of August 31, 2018, the maturity was extended to September
16, 2020. The interest rate is fixed at 7.58 %. The balance of this
loan as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, amounted
to CZK 12,873 thousand and CZK 10,216 thousand.

On July 10, 2009, a loan contract was entered into between
Clarex Investments a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
in the amount of EUR 485 thousand, and by Amendment No. 3 of
August 31, 2018, the maturity was extended to December 31,
2020. The interest rate is fixed at 6.10 %. The balance of this loan
as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, amounted to
CZK 7,717 thousand and CZK 7,662 thousand.

In 2015, Clarex Investments a.s. issued to the Company promis-
sory notes in the total amount of EUR 428 thousand. The com-
pany shows the bills as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 in the
amount of CZK 11,005 thousand and CZK 10,926 thousand on the
line "Receivables - controlled or controlling entity".

On August 20, 2013, a loan contract was entered into between
AERO Vodochody a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
in the amount of CZK 100,000 thousand, and by Amendment No.
3 of August 22, 2018, the maturity was extended to August 30,
2020. The interest rate is fixed at 4.02 %. The balance of this loan
as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, amounted
to CZK 0 thousand and CZK 0 thousand.

On July 22, 2010, a loan contract was entered into between
Clester Trading a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in the
amount of EUR 200 thousand, and by Amendment No. 5 of July
22, 2018, the maturity was extended to July 22, 2019. The interest
rate is fixed at 7.58 %. The balance of this loan as at December
31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, amounted to CZK 4,609 thou-
sand and CZK 4,512 thousand.

On September 16, 2009, a loan contract was entered into bet-
ween Clarex Investments a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE

Short-term receivables from related parties as at December 31
(in CZK thousands):

relateD Party 2018 2017

Clarex Investments a.s. – interest in EUR (estimated item) 3 833 2 487
Clester Trading a.s. – interest in EUR (estimated item) 2 674 2 308
Letiště Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in CZK 72 108
AERO Vodochody a.s. – interest in CZK (estimated item) 190 190
AERO Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in CZK 699 39
AERO Vodochody a.s. – estimated item in CZK 201 -
OAKFIELD a.s. – trade receivables in CZK 20 10
TULAROSA a.s. – trade receivables in CZK 17 9
total 7 706 5 151

Loans provided from related parties as at December 31
(in thousand CZK)

The Company purchases products, draws credit, and uses servi-
ces from related parties within the ordinary course of business.
In 2018 and 2017, these purchases including cost interest
amounted to CZK 30,196 thousand (of which the cost interest
amounted to CZK 33,858 thousand) and CZK 16,240 thousand (of
which the cost interests amounted to CZK 5,290 thousand).

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the deposit (balance) of the
Company on the accounts of the related party Privatbanka, a.s.
amounted to CZK 82 thousand and CZK 86 thousand.

On October 1, 2018, a loan contract was entered into between
AERO Vodochody a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in
the amount of CZK 600,000 thousand with maturity to March 31,
2023. The interest rate is fixed at 4.90 %.

On March 9, 2018, a loan contract was entered into between
AERO Vodochody a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in
the amount of CZK 700,000 thousand with maturity to March 31,
2023. The interest rate is fixed at 4.90 %.

maturity
relateD Party / interest rate 2018 2017

AERO Vodochody a.s. - in CZK 31. 12. 2020/4,90 % 124 634 124 634
AERO Vodochody a.s. - in CZK 30. 8. 2020/4,02 % 1 084 10 080
AERO Vodochody a.s. - in CZK 31. 3. 2023/4,90 % 696 700 -
AERO Vodochody a.s. - in CZK 31. 3. 2023/4,90 % 600 000 -
total 1 422 418 134 634

Short-term payables to related parties as at December 31
(thousand CZK):

relateD Party 2018 2017

AERO Vodochody a.s. 2 381 2 120
AERO Vodochody a.s. (interest) 40 905 7 047
Clarex Investments a.s. - 1 259
total 43 286 10 426
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Petr Brychta
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Mariusz Kedra
Accounting Manager
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Monika Eliášová 
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

22. researcH and development

In 2018 and 2017, research and development costs amounted to
CZK 449,330 thousand and CZK 417,030 thousand.

23. material items of profit and loss 
account

In 2018 and 2017, other operating revenues comprise in particu-
lar revenues from ceded receivables (see Note 6) and from
received subsidies (see Note 19). 

In 2018 and 2017, other operating expenses include in particular
the nominal value of ceded receivables (see Note 6), shortages
and damages and insurance fees.

Other finance revenue and expense in 2018 and 2017 include
mainly exchange rate gains and losses. 

Fees paid to statutory auditors for verification services are shown
in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.

24. significant events after 
balance sHeet date

Based on decision of the sole shareholder as at March 15, 2019,
Mr. Giuseppe Giordo was removed from function of statutory re-
presentative as of March 2019 and Mr. Petr Brychta was appoin-
ted to function of statutory representative as of March 16, 2019.
Ing. Petr Brychta.

25. cHanges in eQuitY 

balance as balance as balance as
at 31.12.2016 increase Decrease at 31.12.2017 increase Decrease others at 31.12.2018

Basix capital 1 002 000 - - 1 002 000 - - - 1 002 000
Gain or loss on revaluation
of assets and liabilities (+/-) -41 013 49 172 -53 8 106 589 -42 388 - -33 693

Statutory and other reserves 2 021 - -712 1 309 - -140 - 1 169
Retained earnings 476 597 39 153 - 515 751 - -5 899 -2 509 850
Differences arising 
on corporate transformation (+/-) 1 431 - - 1 431 - - - 1 431
Profit (loss) for the year (+/-) 39 153 -5 899 -39 153 -5 899 -560 091 5 899 - -560 091
total 1 480 189 82 426 -39 918 1 522 698 -559 502 -42 528 -2 920 666
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11.7
Overall length of the L-39NG is 11.7 meters.
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The process of controlling the Company by the controlling entity is
depicted in the following scheme. 

The controlling person also controls a number of other companies
operating in different sectors, which are not listed in the above
scheme and in relation to the Company they act as persons control-
led by the same controlling entity.

rePort on relations betWeen the controllinG entity
anD controlleD entity anD betWeen the controlleD
entity anD Persons controlleD by the same
controllinG entity 

Report of the Board of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. on
relations between the controlling and controlled entity and bet-
ween the controlled entity and entities controlled by the same
controlling entity drawn up pursuant to Sections 82-88 of Act No
90/2012 Coll., on commercial companies and cooperatives
(Business Corporations Act) 

section i.
controlled and controlling person

controled person
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
based at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, postcode 250 70
ID 24194204
registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal
Court in Prague, Section B, File 17749
(hereinafter the "Company")

controlling Person
Penta Investments Group Limited
based at 3rd Floor, Osprey House, 5-7 Old Street, St. Helier,
JE2 3RG, Jersey

Registration number: 112251

section ii.
reference period

This report has been prepared for the period from January 1, 2018
to December 31, 2018.

section iii.
tHe structure of relations between 
tHe controlling and controlled entitY
and between tHe controlled entitY 
and entities controlled bY tHe same
controlling entitY

Entities controlled by the same controlling person are the Company
and persons directly or indirectly controlling it, as well as companies
controlled by the controlling entity, i.e. entities controlled by Penta
Investments Group Limited. 

Penta Investments Group Limited (JE)

PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED (JE)

Vodochody Holdings Limited (CY)

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Clester Trading a.s.

Clarex Investments a.s.

SALORI HOLDING B.V (NL)

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

LV-Solar Vodochody a.s.

OAKFIELD a.s.

TULAROSA a.s.

AERO Vodochody a.s.
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100% 100%


100%
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b. The following contracts/agreement were made or were still effec-
tive between the Company and other persons controlled by the same
Controlling Person in the period under review:

section iv.
tHe role of tHe controlled entitY 
in tHe structure of relations between
tHe controlling and tHe controlled 
entitY and entities controlled bY 
tHe same controlling entitY

AEROSPACE Vodochody AERO a.s. forms a separate business entity
with a specific line of business in the ownership structure of the
controlling entity. 

It therefore does not carry out any activity common to the remaining
entities in the ownership structure of the controlling entity and is not
subjected to uniform control, therefore it does not constitute a group
with the controlling entity and other entities in the ownership
structure of the controlling entity.

section v.
tHe manner and means of controlling
tHe controlled entitY

The controlling person controls the controlled person so that through
the company Tularosa it owns 100% of the shares of AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE. The controlling person exercises its business interests
by exercising its shareholder rights in the supreme body of the
controlled entity, including appointment of persons in the statutory
bodies of the controlled entity.

section vi.
summarY of actions taken in tHe last
reporting period, wHicH were made 
at tHe instigation or in tHe interest 
of tHe controlling entitY or entities
controlled bY it, if sucH conduct 
related to assets exceeding 10% of tHe
eQuitY of tHe controlled entitY identi-
fied in tHe latest financial statements.

In the reference period, no actions were taken at the instigation or
in the interest of the controlling entity or entities controlled by it,
which would be related to assets exceeding 10% of the equity of the
controlled entity identified in the latest financial statements.

section vii. 
overview of mutual agreements 
between tHe controlled entitY 
and tHe controlling entitY or between
controlled entities  

a. No contracts were concluded between a controlled entity and the
controlling entity during the relevant period.

entity title of contract Date Performance Performance contract Detriment
/aGreement of siGninG renDereD receiveD PerioD

AERO Vodochody  a.s.
Addendum No. 3 to the Loan 

22.8.2018 loan extension interest 30.8.2020 none
agreement dated August 20, 2013

AERO Vodochody  a.s.
Addendum No. 3 to the Loan 

loan extension
agreement dated August 20, 2013

22.8.2018 interest 30.8.2020 none

AERO Vodochody  a.s. Addendum No. 2 to the Loan
agreement dated October 27, 2015 9.3.2018 interest 31.12.2020 none

AERO Vodochody  a.s. Loan agreement dated March 9, 2018 9.3.2018 interest provision of loan 31.3.2023 none
AERO Vodochody  a.s. Loan agreement dated October 1, 2018 1.10.2018 interest provision of loan 31.3.2023 none

Clester Trading a.s.
Addendum No. 5 to the Loan  
agreement dated July 22, 2010

22.6.2018 loan extension interest 22.7.2019 none

Clarex Investments a.s.
Addendum No. 6 to the Loan agreement
dated September 16, 2009 

31.8.2018 loan extension interest 16.9.2020 none

Clarex Investments a.s.
Addendum No. 3 to the Loan 
agreement dated July 10, 2009

31.8.2018 loan extension interest 31.12.2020 none

TULAROSA a.s.
Intercreditor Agreement intercreditor Se per agreemen
dated 29 March 2018

29.3.2018
agreement

-
or loan life

none

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Addendum No. 2 to the Services
Agreement (general agreement)

1.1.2016 consideration indefinite period none

AERO Vodochody  a.s.
Lease agreement for lease of Neutralizing
station dated April 26, 2013

26.4.2013 consideration lease of assets indefinite period  none

AERO Vodochody  a.s.
Contract for the lease of a plot of lease of real
d dated April 26, 2013

26.4.2013
estate

lease payment indefinite period none

AERO Vodochody  a.s.
Agreement for the lease of non-residential 
premises dated February 7, 2013

7.2.2013 lease payment lease of real estate indefinite period  none

AERO Vodochody a.s. Contract for establishment of right to build 10.11.2016 establish. of right to build consideration 99 years none
AERO Vodochody  a.s. Services agreement 30.4.2013 provision of services consideration indefinite period none
TULAROSA a.s. Services agreement 2.1.2014 provision of services consideration indefinite period none
OAKFIELD a.s. Services agreement 2.1.2014 provision of services consideration indefinite period none

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Addendum No. 1to Contract for the lease
of SM/297/LV dated December 31, 2015

15.6.2017 lease payment indefinite period none

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Contract for establishment  
of servitude (SM/301/LV)

29.4.2016 consideration indefinite period none

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Contract for establishment
of servitude (SM/302/LV)

29.4.2016 consideration indefinite period none

Period from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

agreement extension, adjustment 
to service scope and price

loan extension, reducing loan
limit, loan subordinating

adjustment of scope 
of contract for lease of 
airport and lease payment

establishment 
of servitude

establishment 
of servitude
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section viii.
assessing wHetHer tHe controlled 
person incurred damage and 
assessment of its compensation
During the reference period, the controlled entity did not incur any
injury caused by the controlling entity, and so no assessment of
its compensation took place.

section ix. 
assessment of advantages and 
disadvantages arising from tHe relations
between tHe controlling and tHe con-
trolled entitY and entities controlled
bY tHe same controlling entitY

The fact that a financial group with strong capital stands behind the
controlled entity is an advantage for the controlled entity, whether
in relation to banks, from which the controlled entity gets credits, or
in relation to foreign customers, to whom the controlling entity can
provide contract support for the implementation of business cases. 

In the reference period, no situation occurred in the relationship
between the controlling and controlled entity, which could be
described as a disadvantage in a commercial or other sense.

section x.
conclusion
The Board of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE states that it has exerci-
sed due care and diligence in determining the group of relations
between the controlling entity and controlled entity, and between the
controlled entity and entities controlled by the same controlling
entity for the purposes of this report, in particular by asking the
controlling persons in the period before and after the change
of ownership of the Company on the group of persons that they con-
trolled within a specified period.

The Board of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE proclaims that all
pecuniary performance or consideration granted based on the
relationships specified in Section VII hereof was, in its opinion,
in the usual amount.

This report was presented for review to the Supervisory Board
and the auditor of the Company who will audit the financial state-
ments of the Company for 2018 in accordance with special law.

In Odolena Voda on February 14, 2019

Giuseppe Giordo
Member of the Board
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.                                                               .

review of the report by the supervisory board
On February 15, 2019, the Supervisory Board examined the Report
of the Board of Directors of the Company on relations between
the controlling and controlled entity and between the controlled
entity and entities controlled by the same controlling entity for 2018.
The Supervisory Board agrees with the content of the Report.

ing. Dominika kalinová
Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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